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VISION

Winning together with our customers, 
our ambition is to enhance local and 
regional footprint while delivering 
sustainable value to all stakeholders.

MISSION
We are determined to:

Ø  Strengthen our domestic market 
     leadership position
Ø  Establish a footprint in new segments & 
     regional markets
Ø  Achieve success through winning together 
     with our customers driven by best cost 
     propositions, motivated people and 
     effective teamwork
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Board of Directors 

Taimur Dawood
Asif Qadir
Farooq Nazir
Mehreen Dawood
Faisal Dawood
Ali Asrar Hossain Aga
Haroon Waheed
M. Mohsin Zia

Chairman 
Independent Director 
Non-Executive Director 
Non-Executive Director 
Non-Executive Director 
Independent Director 
Independent Director 
Chief Executive Officer

Muhammad Rizwan Qaiser

Chief Financial Officer

Abdul Sohail

Company Secretary

Auditors

M/s A. F. Ferguson & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Internal Auditors
M/s KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Legal Advisors
M/s Hassan & Hassan Advocates

Bankers
Allied Bank Limited
Bank Al Habib Limited
Bank Alfalah Limited
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited
The Bank of Punjab 

Share Registrar
M/s Corplink (Pvt) Limited
Wings Arcade, 1-K Commercial Area,
Model Town, Lahore-53000
Tel: +92 42 35887262, 35839182
Fax: +92 42 35869037

Registered Office
Descon Headquarter
18-KM Ferozepur Road
Lahore-53000 Pakistan.
Tel: +92 42 35923721-9

Plant Site
18-KM Lahore - Sheikhupura Road,
Lahore, Pakistan.
Tel: +92 42 37971822-24
Fax: +92 42 3797 1834

Web Presence
Updated Company’s Information
together with the latest Annual Report
can be accessed at Descon Oxychem Limited’s 
Website: www.desconoxychem.com
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Board and Management Committees

Audit Committee

Audit committee has been constituted by the Board in compliance with the 
Listing Regulations. The committee oversees the Internal Audit function, 
and also reviews internal audit plans and reports. The committee conducts 
its meetings as and when required. The committee apprises the Board 
about the significant discussion and decisions at its meetings and 
recommendations in respect of company's operation and financial results.
The committee comprises of three members, all are non-executive 
directors, including the Chairman of the committee. This committee is 
constituted of the following members:

Ali Asrar Hossain Aga Chairman
Farooq Nazir Member
Faisal Dawood Member

Enterprise Risk Management Committee

Enterprise Risk Management Committee was constituted to assist Audit 
Committee of the Board of Directors in overseeing and reviewing 
information regarding the enterprise risk management framework, 
including the significant policies, procedures and practices employed to 
manage all risks affecting the Company. The committee at minimum meets 
on a quarterly basis or as frequently as necessary. The committee is 
constituted of the following members:

M. Mohsin Zia Chairman
Mushfiq Hussain Member
M. Rizwan Qaiser Member
Amir Javed Member

Human Resource & Remuneration Committee

The Committee has been constituted by the Board to recommend human 
resource management policies  to the board and fulfill the requirements of 
the listed companies (Code of corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019. 
It comprises of four members,  of whom two are non-executive directors, 
the Chairman of the committee is an independent director:

Haroon Waheed Chairman
Ali Asrar Hossain Aga Member
Farooq Nazir Member
Faisal Dawood Member

Compliance Committee

Compliance Committee was constituted to oversee Company's 
compliance with applicable legal and regulatory requirements, industry 
standards, and the Company's Code of Ethics and Business Conduct. The 
committee is constituted of the following
members:

M. Mohsin Zia Chairman
Mushfiq Hussain Member
M. Rizwan Qaiser Member
Amir Javed Member
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Mining Food & Beverages

Descon's DOLOX 50 brand is the 
leadership brand for Pakistan's 
mining industry. It is extensively 
used by its customers as an 
oxidant, such as leaching, 
concentrate preparation and 
effluent treatment. This application 
is known as Peroxide Assisted 
leach and effluent treatment. The 
treatment of dissolved oxygen is a 
crucial factor for overall leaching 
efficiency. HP ensures that the 
necessary dissolved oxygen 
concentration is in the system, 
leading to significant increases in 
leaching efficiency. Downstream, 
HP is often used for the removal of 
cyanide oxidation in a single step, 
without the formation of toxic 
intermediates.

Descon's ASEPTOX 35 & SANIDOL 
are among the top brands used by 
the food and beverage customers. 
HP is used in beverages, milk, dairy 
products, sauces and soups.
These products are packaged 
aseptically in cartons, tubes, bottles 
and foils. These storage-stable 
products maintain the required shelf-
life and high product quality 
standards. To create a sterile 
environment in aseptic packing 
units, several treatment approaches 
for materials sterilization and internal
machine surfaces are used.

Textiles

The company's TEXTOX 50 is the 
flagship brand, which is most 
extensively used by the textile 
market for bleaching of natural and 
animal-bers derived from cellulose 
such as cotton, linen and bast-bers. 
The textile-bers are used as lose 
stock, yarn or knitted woven 
fabrics. This product has inherent 
design strengths
and the right chemistry to be used in 
a wide range of processing 
technologies. These include Rier, 
Winch, Jig, J-Box and Steamer with 
and without storage. The oxidizing 
bleaching agents, where HP 
provides a high bleaching impact at 
extremely competit ive cost, 
especially if modern short-term 
bleaching are used.

Principal Markets & 
Application Areas
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Our core customer segment, textile sector, has seen phenomenal growth during the past year as expected on the back of 
government's efforts to stimulate export growth post pandemic. Your company was well prepared to cater to the additional 
demand due to the timely expansion implemented in 2020. During the year the management tactically implemented an effective 
strategy to enhance margins and capture profitable market share despite cost pressures due to global supply chain disruptions 
and high energy costs. The additional volume also helped us to benefit from economies of scale while strengthening our position 
as the market leader in the local market. 

The Board has been playing a pivotal role in providing stewardship to the company through regular reviews of the business and 
its performance. The Directors have set high standard of corporate governance and compliance, which are reflected through the 
engagement of a strong outsourced internal audit function.

The board performed its role and responsibilities for setting standards, policies, strategic aims, ensuring resources are in place 
to meet our objectives, monitor and review material strategic issues, financial performance and risk management.  In 2021-22, 
your Company has achieved an increased EPS of (PKR 2.69 / Share) due to additional sales volumes and improved product 
placement. The Board of Directors have recommended a 20% cash dividend for its valuable shareholders, signifying the strong 
and healthy cash flow position of the Company. 
 
It's important to highlight the key role played by the Committees (Audit Committee, Human Resource and Remuneration 
Committee) in guiding the management towards areas of improvements. 

Your Company has made significant inroads in profitable domestic market segments while strengthening its position as a 
regional player with exports to multiple markets earning precious foreign exchange for our exchequer. In additional to the textile 
sector your company has also made efforts to diversify into profitable product portfolios creating a hedge against any future 
depression in demand and prices. Despite the fluid business landscape, the Company is well prepared to respond to the rapidly 
changing external scenario. 

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I would like to express my gratitude to all our stakeholders for their continued support and 
encouragement and place on record the appreciation of the valuable services rendered by the management of the Company. I 
also acknowledge the commitment and diligence of my fellow directors and the management during the year under review. 

Lahore
September 07, 2022

Taimur Dawood 
Chairman
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DIRECTORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
For the year ended June 30, 2022

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present the Annual Report along with the Audited Financial Statements for the year 
ended June 30, 2022.

Economic Review

The year has been challenging for most of the global businesses with energy costs at all time high leading to double digital 
inflation resulting in sharp increase in production costs. This coupled with increased interest rate, further slowed down the 
global demand which had picked up post pandemic. Despite these challenges Pakistan's economy has shown robust growth on 
the back of government's efforts to stimulate economy. As expected, these initiatives have brought in promising results in the 
form of increased demand. The capacity expansion implemented by your company during the previous year has helped us to 
improve margins and handle increased demand during these uncertain times.

Business Results

Your Company continuously strives to sustain its consistent performance despite adverse movement in the gas, utility and 
packing material costs exacerbated by high interest rates. During the year the management focused on improving margins 
despite cost challenges through improved pricing and better product placements while capitalizing on economies of scale 
generated by previous year's capacity expansion. The expansion also provided the much-needed additional volume resulting in 
higher revenue. The results below show the management's focus on efficient production, improved profitability and market 
development while leveraging its strength as the major player in hydrogen peroxide market within the country. These efforts 
have led your company to achieve significantly improved profitability. 
The summarized financial performance appears below:

The Company has been able to improve its sales value by 52% as compared to last year through higher production because of 
expansion implemented last year and better product placement. Gross profit percentage has gone to 26% from 22% last year. 
Borrowing cost has gone down from PKR 64 million to PKR 53 million based on efficient working capital management and long-
term debt prepayment.  

Profit after tax has increased to PKR 471 million from PKR 279 million despite impact of super tax in the current financial year. 
The management has kept a tight control on fixed costs leading to efficient deployment of resources to manage the business.

Cash Flow Management

Your Company has generated cashflow from operations of PKR 1.2 billion as compared to PKR 678 million owing to improved 
cash conversion cycle, improved production and better pricing. Despite significant increase in raw material costs, global supply 
chain disruptions and PKR devaluation the company has efficiently managed to keep the investment in working capital to a mere 
PKR 9 million.

Sales
Gross profit
Profit from operations
Finance cost
Profit before tax
Profit after tax
Earnings per share – Basic
ROE

2022 2021
Rupees in thousands

4,250,493
1,101,805

855,014
(52,568)
802,446
470,877

2.69
20%

2,804,903
612,941
452,636
(64,691)
387,945
278,703

1.59
14%
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Safety & Manufacturing

Sales & Marketing

Entity Credit Rating

Rating Type  Rating

Health, safety, environment and security of our employees/contractors have a principal focus in the company, and it is an 
integral part of Descon's core values. At the close of FY22, the business had operated twelve consecutive years without a single 
lost time injury (LTI), achieving 8.70 million man-hours. Total reportable injuries rate (TRIR) is still zero, same as last year. 

The company remained fully compliant with all global accreditation requirements for ISO 9001, OHSAS 18001 and ISO 14001. 
The business consistently complied with national liquid and gaseous emissions standards. The entire workforce is trained, 
supported and regularly assessed, which enables them to perform their jobs with minimal risk. During the year, the company 
invested significant training hours in capacity and capability development. Further, it continues to take measures that build 
institutional memory.

The company took sustainability initiatives in line with United Nations Sustainability Development goals & good progress 
achieved against the set targets. Some of the key updates are:

– Reducing energy consumption 
– Reducing water consumption
– Gender diversity – increasing population of female employees
– ISO-45001 certification 

This year, the company has successfully installed the additional capacity. Plant turnaround was safely & successfully carried 
out where three major energy conservation projects of Recycle Hydrogen Compressor, Solvent Recovery Unit & Working 
Solution Economizers were completed, resulting in reduction of consumption factors. 

Special focus was given to Manufacturing excellence program to bring in efficiencies in plant operations and other processes. 
Multiple initiatives in craft trainings, operating discipline and plant reliability were taken to bring in savings for the company. The 
drive has also resulted in reduction of controllable losses to 0.73% vs 1% industry benchmark.

The Company continues to be the market leader, preferred supplier, and provider of consistent quality product to the customer.  
While the textile sector is experiencing upswing enhancing the demand from our core textile customers the Company has also 
diversified its customer portfolio by adding international customers, contributing foreign exchange to the exchequer. 

The company is expecting significant improvement in profitable market share based on stronger push and market intelligence-
based approach.

By the Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited as on June 30, 2022.

Long-term A+(A Plus)
Short-term A1 (A One)

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency (PACRA) has upgraded the long-term and the short-term entity ratings of Descon Oxychem 
Limited (DOL) at "A+" (A Plus) and "A1" (A one), respectively. These ratings suggest a low expectation of credit risk emanating 
from a strong capacity for timely payment of financial commitments.
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Future Outlook

Corporate Governance

Composition of the Board of Directors

The company plans to keep tight control on its fixed cost while making significant inroads into diversified market segments 
creating opportunities to further improve its margin despite ongoing cost challenges. Your company is consistently working on 
strategies to mitigate risks while capitalizing on opportunities to maximize shareholder's value.

The Business expects the textile demand to remain strong. In parallel significant efforts are in place for further exploring 
profitable export markets and business segments creating a mitigant against future adverse price moments. 

The business wishes to sustain its best-in-class position in safety, production efficiency and market intelligence through 
investment in continuous improvement and data driven decision making.

Board of Directors of the Company and the Management are fully conversant with their key responsibilities as required by the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 (the "Act"). The Board has adopted best practices of Corporate Governance by ensuring 
a strong sense of business principles and high standards for compliance in the business activities. The same have been 
summarised in the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 
2019 (the"Regulations") duly reviewed by the external auditors.

The Directors are pleased to report the following:

a. The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly the results of its operations, 
cashflows and changes in equity.

b. Proper books of account of the Company have been maintained.

c. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements and accounting 
estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

d. International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of 
financial statements and any departure therefrom has been adequately disclosed and explained. 

e. The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.

f. There are no significant doubts on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

g. All the directors on the Board are fully conversant with their duties and responsibilities as directors of a corporate body.

h. There has been no material departure from the best practices of Corporate Governance as detailed in the listing 
regulations.

I. The key operating and financial data of last six years is attached to the report.

The total numbers of directors are eight (8) including Chief Executive (deemed Director) as follows:
Male 7 (including Chief Executive)
Female 1
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The composition of the Board is as follows:

During the financial year under review, there were no changes to the Board of Directors of the Company.

The Board is legally required to meet at least once in every quarter to monitor the Company's performance aimed at effective and 
timely accountability of its management. The decisions made by the Board during the meetings were minuted and were duly 
circulated to all the Directors within the timeline as determined by the Act for endorsement and were formally approved in the 
following Board meetings.

All meetings of the Board were held in compliance with required quorum prescribed by the Act and the Regulations. Agenda of 
each meeting was circulated in a timely manner. The Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary also attended the Board 
meetings.

During the year under review, five (05) meetings of the Board of Directors were held and the attendance of Directors was as 
follows:

Six directors are certified by Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance or Lahore University of Management Sciences and one 
director is exempted from the requirements of Directors' Training as per the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 
Regulations, 2019. Directors' Training Program for the Chief Executive Officer has been planned in the ensuing year. 

The Board of Directors have employed an effective system of operational and financial controls, promoting a culture of moral 
conduct and ethical obligation at all levels within the Company. The Audit Committee reviews the effectiveness of internal 
controls framework on a quarterly basis, whereas Internal Audit function provides independent and objective evaluations and 
reports to the Audit Committee on the effectiveness of governance, risk management and control processes.

Changes to the Board

Meetings of the Board

Directors' Training

Internal Audit and Control

RemarksName of Director Meetings Attended
Mr. Taimur Dawood
Mr. Faisal Dawood
Ms. Mehreen Dawood 
Mr. Farooq Nazir
Mr. Ali Asrar Hossain Agha
Mr. Asif Qadir
Mr. Haroon Waheed
Mr. Muhammad Mohsin Zia

5
5
5
5
5
4
1
5

–
–
–
–
–
Leave of absence was granted by the Board in one meeting
Leave of absence was granted by the Board in four meetings.
– 

NameSr. No. Category

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8

Independent Director

Non-Executive Directors

Executive Director

Mr. Ali Asrar Hossain Aga
Mr. Asif Qadir
Mr. Haroon Waheed
Mr. Taimur Dawood
Mr. Farooq Nazir
Mr. Faisal Dawood
Ms. Mehreen Dawood
Mr. Muhammad Mohsin Zia (CEO)
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In order to ensure transparency and independence of the Internal Audit function, the Head of Internal Audit and outsourced 
Internal audit service providers M/s. KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co. Chartered Accountants report directly to the Audit Committee. 
Risk based annual internal audit plan of the Company is also approved by the Audit Committee and its progress is reviewed on a 
quarterly basis. The Audit Committee has reviewed material Internal Audit findings, taken appropriate actions where necessary 
or brought the matters to the Board's attention, where required. Adequate remedial and mitigating measures are applied, where 
necessary.

The Board of Directors has established an efficient system of internal financial controls, for ensuring effective and efficient 
conduct of operations, safeguarding of the Company's assets, compliance with applicable laws and regulations and reliable 
financial reporting.  

The remuneration of Board members is decided by the committee of the Board. The Board seeks to ensure that there is a 
transparent and fair mechanism in place for determining the remuneration of directors for participation in the meetings of the 
Board and its committees. For this purpose, a policy for determining remuneration of directors has been approved and 
implemented. The Company does not pay remuneration to its non-executive Directors. Only meeting participation fee is being 
paid to independent directors. Aggregate amount of fee paid to independent Directors has been disclosed in [Note 37] of these 
financial statements.

As prescribed under the Regulations, Board has conducted an evaluation of its own performance, its members and of its 
committees through internal team of Corporate Affairs Department. No significant departure from the Act, the Regulations and 
the policies & procedures was found in the said evaluation report. Chairman of Board, in consultation with the Board members 
has developed an evaluation plan for the Board and its Committees to ensure that the Board and its committees are fully 
conversant with their roles and responsibilities. The Board reviews its own performance, and performance of its members and 
committees on a regular basis.

To assist the smooth operations of the Board and support in sound decision making, the Board has established four committees 
out of which two committees are chaired by independent directors.

The committee supports the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities while primarily reviewing financial or non-financial 
information to the shareholders in compliance with prevailing regulations and accounting standards. The Audit Committee also 
ensures that sound systems of internal controls are in place to safeguard Company's assets. The Terms of Reference of the 
Committee have been defined in light of the guidelines of the Regulations.

The Audit Committee comprises of three (3) members, as follows:

Mr. Ali Asrar Hossain Aga (Independent Director) – Chairman
Mr. Farooq Nazir (Non-executive Director) – Member
Mr. Faisal Dawood (Non-executive Director) – Member

Adequacy of Internal Financial Controls

Directors' Remuneration

Evaluation of Performance of the Board

Committees of the Board

Audit Committee
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The committee met 4 times during the year and the attendance was as follows:

The Human Resource & Remuneration Committee has been established to review and recommend to the Board all elements of 
compensation and policies and procedures required to be adopted for an effective human resource function. 

The Human Resource & Remuneration Committee comprises of four (4) members as follows:

Mr. Haroon Waheed (Independent Director) – Chairman
Mr. Ali Asrar Hossain Aga (Independent Director) – Member 
Mr. Farooq Nazir (Non-executive Director) – Member 
Mr. Faisal Dawood (Non-executive Director) – Member

The Committee had three meetings during the year and the attendance of the meetings is as follows:

Risk Management Committee was constituted to assist Audit Committee of the Board of Directors in overseeing and reviewing 
information regarding the enterprise risk management framework, practices employed to manage all risks affecting the 
Company. The committee at minimum meets on a quarterly basis or as frequently as necessary. The committee is constituted of 
the following members:

Mr. Muhammad Mohsin Zia (Executive Director)  Chairman
Mr. Muhammad Rizwan Qaiser (Chief Financial Officer)  Member
Mr. Mushfiq Hussain (Works Manager)   Member
Mr. Amir Javed (Manager Shared Services)   Member

Compliance Committee was constituted to oversee company's compliance with applicable legal and regulatory requirements, 
industry standards and the company's code of ethics and business conduct. The Compliance Committee comprised of the 
following members:

Mr. Muhammad Mohsin Zia (Executive Director)   Chairman
Mr. Muhammad Rizwan Qaiser (Chief Financial Officer)  Member
Mr. Mushfiq Hussain (Works Manager)   Member
Mr. Amir Javed (Manager Shared Services)   Member

Human Resource & Remuneration Committee

Enterprise Risk Management Committee

Compliance Committee

Name of Member
Mr. Haroon Waheed
Mr. Ali Asrar Hossain Aga
Mr. Farooq Nazir
Mr. Faisal Dawood

Meetings Attended
2
3
3
3

Name of Member Meetings Attended
Mr. Ali Asrar Hossain Aga
Mr. Farooq Nazir
Mr. Faisal Dawood

4
4
4
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Related Party Transactions

Social Investment

Pattern of Shareholding

Cash Dividends

Auditors

Acknowledgements

The Audit Committee reviewed and recommended all the related party transactions to the Board and the Board approved them. 
All related party transactions were carried out in the normal course of business and on an arm's length basis. The Company 
maintains a complete record of all the related party transactions as prescribed in the Companies (Related Party Transactions 
and Maintenance of Related Records) Regulations, 2018. The Company has made detailed disclosure of the related party 
transactions in the financial statements annexed with this annual report. Such disclosure is in line with the requirements of the 
4th Schedule of the Act and applicable International Financial Reporting Standards.

The Company continues to focus on Corporate and Social Responsibilities. The Company recognizes the importance of being a 
good corporate citizen in conducting its business as well as delivering its obligations in social welfare of its staff and community 
in general.

In accordance with section 227(2)(f) of the Act, the pattern of shareholding as of June 30,2022, along with disclosures as 
required under the Regulations is annexed to the Annual Report.

The Board of Directors has recommended final cash dividend @ 20% (Rs. 2/- per ordinary share) to the shareholders out of the 
profits of the Company for the year ended on June 30, 2022. It will be paid subject to the approval from the shareholders in the 
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

The financial statements of the Company for the year 2021-2022 were audited by M/s. A.F. Ferguson & Company, Chartered 
Accountants. The auditors will retire at the end of the Annual General Meeting. Being eligible, they have offered themselves for 
re-appointment. As recommended by the Audit Committee, the Board has approved the appointment of M/s. A.F. Ferguson & 
Co. Chartered Accountants as auditors of the Company for the year ending June 30, 2023, subject to the approval of the 
Shareholders in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

We would like to thanks all stakeholders for their contributions in the past year. It is our stakeholder's support that makes all the 
company's achievements possible while helping us create a sustainable business. 

We look forward to a promising and strong performance in future.

Lahore
September 07, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board 
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2,804,903

612,941

452,636

(64,691)

387,945

278,703

1.59

14%

4,250,493

1,101,805

855,014

(52,568)

802,446

470,877

2.69

20%
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Key Operating and Financial Data

Particular 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

---------------------------------------------------(Rs ‘000)------------------------------------------------
Summary of Profit and Loss
Sales
Cost of Goods Sold
Gross Profit
Operating profit
Finance Cost
Profit / (loss) before tax
Profit / (loss) after tax
EBITDA

Financial Position

Share Capital - Ordinary

Share Capital - Preference
Reserves including unappropriated profit
Long term borrowings - Current & Non Current Portion
Property, plant and equipment

Net Current Assets

Investor Information

Gross profit margin (%)
EBITDA margin to sales (%)
Pre tax margin (%)
Net profit margin (%)
Return on equity (%) 
Return on capital employed (%) 
Current Ratio
Quick Ratio
Debtors turnover (days)

Inventory turnover (days)

Creditors turnover (days)

Operating cycle (no. of days)

Debt: Equity (Ratio)

Interest cover (Times)

Earnings / (loss) per share (pre tax) (Rupees)

Earnings / (loss) per share (after tax) (Rupees) - Basic

Earnings / (loss) per share (after tax) (Rupees) - Dilluted

Share Price
Price Earnings Ratio
Breakup Value Per Share (Rupees)

Hydrogen Peroxide Production (MTs)

Hydrogen Peroxide Sales (MTs)
Trading General Sales (MTs)

                  4,250,493 
                (3,148,688)
                  1,101,805 
                    855,014 

                     (52,568)
                    802,446 
                    470,877 
                  1,208,320 

                  1,750,311 

                              -   
                    605,642 
                    357,824 
                  2,489,830 

                    345,629 

                        25.92 
                        28.43 
                        18.88 
                        11.08 
                        19.96 
                        29.57 
                          1.34 
                          0.59 
                             20 

                             29 

                             89 

                            (40)

 13:87 

                        16.26 

                          4.58 

                          2.69 

                          2.69 

                        15.70 
                          5.84 
                        13.48 

                      40,550 

                      42,363 
1,470 

                  2,804,903 
                (2,191,962)
                    612,941 
                    452,636 

                     (64,691)
                    387,945 
                    278,703 
                    767,359 

                  1,750,311 

                    309,796 
                  1,131,689 
                  2,439,580 

                    598,336 

                        21.85 
                        27.36 
                        13.83 
                          9.94 
                        13.51 
                        13.91 
                          2.22 
                          1.44 
                               9 

                             26 

                             59 

                            (24)

 35:65 

                          7.00 

                          2.22 

                          1.59 

                          1.59 

                        26.84 
                        16.88 
                        11.79 

                      32,816 

                      34,898 
                        3,838 

            2,641,615 
          (1,780,357)
               861,258 
               670,282 
               (81,420)
               588,862 
               418,423 
               865,738 

            1,508,889 

                              -                           -   
               181,982 
               223,131 
            2,031,207 

               295,749 

                   32.60 
                   32.77 
                   22.29 
                   15.84 
                   21.62 
                   28.35 
                     1.60 
                     0.55 
                          8 

                        38 

                        84 

                      (39)

 10:90 

                     8.23 

                     4.80 

                     2.85 

                     2.85 

                   29.85 
                   10.47 
                   12.83 

                 31,814 

                 31,412 
                   4,146 

              2,704,957 
             (1,874,206)
                 830,751 
                 657,655 

                  (79,181)
                 578,474 
                 394,269 
                 835,263 

              1,020,000 

                          -   
                (236,441)
                 877,631 
              1,483,894 

                 263,173 

                     30.71 
                     30.88 
                     21.39 
                     14.58 
                     50.32 
                     36.65 
                       1.58 
                       0.82 
                          11 

                          14 

                          61 

                        (36)

 53:47 

                       8.31 

                       5.67 

                       3.87 

                       2.70 

                     16.05 
                       4.15 
                       7.68 

                   30,836 

                   30,823 
                     6,343                     

              2,088,225 
             (1,471,864)
                 616,361 
                 459,191 

                    (5,373)
                 453,818 
                 322,279 
                 632,862 

              1,020,000 

              1,100,000 
                (344,272)

                          -   
              1,392,836 

                 320,986 

                     29.52 
                     30.31 
                     21.73 
                     15.43 
                     18.15 
                     25.86 
                       2.22 
                       1.32 
                            7 

                            7 

                          52 

                        (38)

 0:100 

                     85.46 

                       4.45 

                       3.16 

                       1.52 

                     19.30 
                       6.11 
                       6.62 

                   33,293 

                   34,012 
4,696                     

              1,961,005 
             (1,454,383)
                 506,622 
                 345,273 

                  (11,739)
                 333,534 
                 204,925 
                 528,810 

              1,020,000 

              1,100,000 
                (402,551)

                          -   
              1,518,988 

                   92,560 

                     25.83 
                     26.97 
                     17.01 
                     10.45 
                     11.93 
                     20.10 
                       1.21 
                       0.64 
                          13 

                          12 

                          53 

                        (28)

 0:100 

                     29.41 

                       3.27 

                       2.01 

                       0.97 

                     18.35 
                       9.13 
                       6.05 

                   34,697 

                   34,295 
4,966                     

              1,581,547 
             (1,238,213)
                 343,334 
                 210,240 

                  (76,564)
                 133,676 
                   44,989 
                 381,911 

              1,020,000 

              1,100,000 
                (607,476)
                 111,822 
              1,655,483 

                (211,114)

                     21.71 
                     24.15 
                       8.45 
                       2.84 
                       2.97 
                     12.94 
                       0.77 
                       0.51 
                          12 

                          10 

                          48 

                        (26)

7:93

                       2.75 

                       1.31 

                       0.44 

                       0.21 

                       6.03 
                     13.67 
                       4.04 

                   32,234 

                   32,340 
1,504 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF DESCON OXYCHEM LIMITED

REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED 
COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 
Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Descon Oxychem Limited for the year ended June 30, 
2022 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility is to 
review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance with the provisions of the 
Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is 
limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply 
with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements, we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and internal 
control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the 
Board of Directors' statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such 
internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, 
place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have 
ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors 
upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does not 
appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as 
applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2022.

A.F. Ferguson & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Lahore
September 22, 2022
UDIN:CR202210128oXpLUdQkw

A.F. FERGUSON & CO., Chartered Accountants, a member firm of the PwC network
23-C, Aziz Avenue, Canal Bank, Gulber-V, P.O.Box 39, Lahore-54660, Pakistan
Tel: +92 (42) 3571 5868-71 / 35775747-50 Fax: +92 (42) 3577 5754 www.pwc.com/pk
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Statement of Compliance 
with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

Name of company: Descon Oxychem Limited
Year ending: June 30, 2022

The company has complied with the requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 
(the “Regulations”) in the following manner:

1. The total numbers of directors are 8(including the Chief Executive Officer) as per the following:

a) Male: 7 
b) Female: 1

The Composition of the Board is as follows:

The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven (7) listed companies, 
including this company.

The company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate 
it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the 
company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant policies along with their date of 
approval or updating is maintained by the company.

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by Board/ 
shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and the Regulations.

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the Board 
for this purpose. The Board has complied with requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, 
recording and circulating minutes of the Meetings of the Board.

The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with Act and 
these Regulations.

Seven directors have either obtained the certificates of Directors' Training Program or are exempted from the 
requirements of Directors' Training Program as per the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 
Regulations, 2019.

There was no new appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit during the 
year.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

Category Names
Independent Directors 

Other Non-executive Directors

Executive Director

Mr. Ali Asrar Hossain Aga
Mr. Asif Qadir
Mr. Haroon Waheed
Mr. Taimur Dawood
Mr. Faisal Dawood
Mr. Farooq Nazir
Ms. Mehreen Dawood
Mr. Muhammad Mohsin Zia (CEO)
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Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the Board.

The board has formed three committees comprising of the members given below:

i. Mr. Ali Asrar Hossain Aga(Independent Director) - Chairman
ii. Mr. Farooq Nazir(Non-executive Director) 
ii. Mr. Faisal Dawood (Non-executive Director)

i. Mr. Haroon Waheed (Independent Director) – Chairman
ii. Mr. Ali Asrar Hossain Aga (Independent Director)
iii. Mr. Farooq Nazir (Non-executive Director)
iv. Mr. Faisal Dawood (Non-executive Director)

i. Mr. Muhammad Mohsin Zia (Executive Director)– Chairman
ii. Mr. Muhammad Rizwan Qaiser (Chief Financial Officer) 
iii. Mr. Mushfiq Hussain (Works Manager)
iv. Mr. Amir Javed (Manager Shared Services)

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the committees for 
compliance.

The frequency of meetings of the committees were as per following:

   a) Audit Committee:
Four quarterly meetings were held during the financial year ended June 30, 2022.

   b) Human Resource and Remuneration Committee:
Three meetings of Human Resource and Remuneration Committee were held during the financial year ended 
June 30, 2022.

   c) Risk Management Committee:
Two meetings of Risk Management Committee were held during the financial year ended June 30, 2022.

The Board has outsourced the internal audit function to M/s. KPMG TaseerHadi and Co., Chartered Accountants, who 
are considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures 
of the company.

The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the Quality 
Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight 
Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) 
guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the 
partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent 
children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director of 
the company.

a) Audit Committee

b) Human Resource and Remuneration Committee

c) Risk Management Committee

11.

12.

13.

14

15.

16.
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The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except in 
accordance with the Act, the Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that 
they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3,6,7,8,27,32,33 and 36 of the Regulations have been complied with.

Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3,6,7,8,27,32,33 and 36 are below:

   I. There is no Nomination Committee in place (required under non-mandatory provision of Regulations 29 & 
30). The company is considering to form the Nomination Committee.

   ii. Chief Executive Officer and female executive have not completed training under Directors' Training Program 
(required under non-mandatory provision of Regulation 19). However, their trainings are planned in the 
ensuing year. 

17.

18.

19.

Lahore
September 07, 2022

Taimur Dawood 
Chairman
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the members of Descon Oxychem Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

Basis for Opinion

Key Audit Matter

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Descon Oxychem Limited (the Company), which comprise the statement 
of financial position as at June 30, 2022, and the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the 
statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained 
all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of financial 
position, statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the 
statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required 
and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2022 and of the profit and other 
comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards 
Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial 
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a 
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Following is the Key audit matter:

Sr No. Key Audit Matter How the matter is addressed in our audit

Revenue recognition

(Refer notes 4.16 and 26 to the annexed 
financial statements) Assessed the design, implementation and  

operating effectiveness of the relevant internal 
controls of the Company's system which 
govern revenue recognition;

Our audit procedures in relation to the matter 
amongst others, included the following:

   – 
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual 
report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the 
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a 
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Sr No. Key Audit Matter How the matter is addressed in our audit

Revenue is recognized at a point in time when 
performance obligations are satisfied by 
transferring control of products and services to 
a customer. The Company is engaged in the 
manufacturing and selling of Hydrogen 
Peroxide locally as well as through exports. The 
Company recognized revenue from the sales of 
own manufactured goods, traded goods and 
freight recovered from its customers measured 
net of commission. 

We consider revenue recognition as a key audit 
matter due to revenue being one of the key 
performance indicators of the Company, 
inherent risk of material misstatement and 
significant increase in revenue from the last 
year.

– 

–

–

–

–

– 

– 

Understood and evaluated the accounting 
policies with respect to revenue recognition and 
its compliance with IFRS 15: 'Revenue from 
Contracts with Customers';

Inspected significant contracts to obtain an 
understanding of contract terms particularly 
relating to timing and customer's acceptance of 
the goods and services;

Performed testing of sample of revenue 
transactions with underlying documentation 
including sales invoices and dispatched 
documents;

Tested on a sample basis, specific revenue 
transactions recorded before and after the 
reporting date with underlying documentation to 
assess whether revenue has been recognized in 
the correct period;

Checked on a sample basis, approval of sales 
prices by the appropriate authority;

Performed audit procedures to analyze variation 
in the price and quantity sold during the year; 
and

Assessed the adequacy of disclosures made   in 
the financial statements related to revenue.
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the 
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and 
for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is 
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

     ·

     ·

     ·

     ·

     ·

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal 
control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a 
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.
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We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the 
audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

(a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

(b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the 
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in 
conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

(c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the 
Company's business; and

(d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted by the Company 
and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Asad Aleem Mirza.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

A.F. Ferguson & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Lahore
September 22, 2022
UDIN: AR202210128XIHrM17FN

A.F. FERGUSON & CO., Chartered Accountants, a member firm of the PwC network
23-C, Aziz Avenue, Canal Bank, Gulber-V, P.O.Box 39, Lahore-54660, Pakistan
Tel: +92 (42) 3571 5868-71 / 35775747-50 Fax: +92 (42) 3577 5754 www.pwc.com/pk
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
as at June 30, 2022

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorized capital 

  220,000,000 (2021: 220,000,000) 

     ordinary shares of Rs 10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

 175,031,084 (2021: 175,031,084) 

    ordinary shares of Rs 10 each

Share premium

Accumulated profits

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term finances - secured

Lease liabilities

Deferred taxation

Deferred grant

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of non current liabilities

Finances under mark up arrangements - secured

Current portion of deferred grant

Trade and other payables

Income tax payable

Dividend payable

Accrued finance costs

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

                         
The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

2022 2021

Note (Rupees in thousand)

2,200,000

             

2,200,000

            

5 1,750,311

             

1,750,311

            
6 3,022

                    

3,022

                   
605,642

                

309,796

               
2,358,975

             

2,063,129

            

7 257,865

                

929,178

               

8 10,482

                  

8,513

                   

9 240,370

                

229,202

               

10 24,188

                  

24,041

                 

532,905

                

1,190,934

            

11 83,325

                  

193,993

               

12 14,620

                  

57,500

                 

10 8,567

                    

7,918

                   

13 766,457

                

356,112

               

128,084

                

-

                      

3,237

                    

2,222

                   

14 8,849

                    

20,863

                 

1,013,139

             

638,608

               

15 -

3,905,019 3,892,671
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ASSETS

NON CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets
Long term loans - secured

Long term deposits and prepayments

CURRENT ASSETS

Stores and spares

Stock in trade

Trade debts

Loans, advances, deposits,

 prepayments and other receivables

Income tax recoverable

Short term investments

Bank balances

             

2022 2021

Note (Rupees in thousand)

16 2,489,830
             

2,439,580

17 26,972
                  

20,123

18 6,025

                    

-

19 23,423

                  

17,554

2,546,250

             

2,477,257

20 509,916

                

339,041

21 248,816

                

154,557

22 237,383

                

72,448

23 106,483

                

134,587

-

                       

96,853

24 150,000

                

560,622

25 106,171

                

57,306

1,358,769

             

1,415,414

3,905,019 3,892,671
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
for the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Sales

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Administrative expenses

Distribution and selling costs

Other income

Other operating expenses

Profit from operations

Finance costs

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit for the year

Earnings per share 

- Basic and diluted

                  The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

2022 2021

Note (Rupees in thousand)

26 4,250,493
         

2,804,903
        

27 (3,148,688)
       

(2,191,962)
      

  1,101,805

         

612,941

           

28 (126,338)

          

(99,382)

           29 (74,196)

            

(56,626)

           30 29,123

              

26,406

             
31 (75,380)

            

(30,703)

           
(246,791)

          

(160,305)

         

  

855,014

            

452,636

           32 (52,568)

            

(64,691)

           

  

802,446

            

387,945

           
33 (331,569)

          

(109,242)

         
470,877

            

278,703

           34 2.69 1.59
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

- Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

- Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Total comprehensive income for the year

The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

2022 2021

(Rupees in thousand)

470,877

       

278,703

-

              

-

-

              

-

470,877 278,703
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
for the Year Ended June 30, 2022

                    

Balance as on July 1, 2020

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners

recognised directly in equity

Final dividend for the year ended June 30, 2020

    @ 10% (Re 1 per share) - Note 5.2

Issuance of 24,142,218 ordinary shares 

of Rs 10 each as bonus shares - Note 5.2

Balance as on June 30, 2021

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners

recognised directly in equity

Final dividend for the year ended June 30, 2021

    @ 10% (Re 1 per share)

                              

Balance as on June 30, 2022

                 

The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

(Rupees in thousand)

Capital Revenue Capital and 

reserve reserve reserves

Ordinary Share Accumulated

share capital premium profits

1,508,889

       

244,444

      

181,982

         

1,935,315

-

                 

-

             

278,703

         

278,703

-

                 

-

             

-

                 

-

-

                 

-

             

278,703

         

278,703

-

                 

-

             

(150,889)

        

(150,889)

241,422

          

(241,422)

    

-

                 

-

241,422

          

(241,422)

    

(150,889)

        

(150,889)

1,750,311

       

3,022

          

309,796

         

2,063,129

-

                 

-

             

470,877

         

470,877

-

                 

-

             

-

                 

-

-

                 

-

             

470,877

         

470,877

- - (175,031) (175,031)

1,750,311 3,022 605,642 2,358,975

Share capital

Total
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Cash flow from operating activities

Cash generated from operations

Finance cost paid

Profit on deposits received

Long term loan

Taxes paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

Short term investments purchased

Short term investments redeemed

Dividend received

Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities

Net proceeds from long term finances - secured

Repayment of long term finances - secured

Repayment of lease liabilities

Ordinary dividend paid

Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year

                       

Cash
The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

2022 2021

Note (Rupees in thousand)

35 1,206,414
     

678,462
       

(52,685)
         

(48,462)
        7,608

            
3,919

           (10,000)
         

-
               (95,464)

         
(91,880)

        

1,055,874

     

542,039

       

(377,108)

       

(712,710)

      
(14,730)

         

(453)

             
60

                 

-

               
(150,000)

       

(559,816)

      
561,347

        

-

               

-

                

11,548

         19,569

          

(1,261,431)

   

-

                

929,525

       

(789,662)

       

(15,666)

        

(20,021)

         

(19,128)

        

(174,016)

       

(150,195)

      

(983,699)

       

744,536

       

91,745

          

25,144

         

(194)

              

(25,338)

        

36 91,551 (194)



DESCON OXYCHEM LIMITED

36

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
for the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Legal status and nature of business

Statement of compliance

The Company was incorporated in Pakistan as a private limited Company on November 12, 2004 under the 
Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017) and was converted into a public limited company with 
effect from February 28, 2008 as approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide letter 
no. ARL 16222 dated March 14, 2008. Subsequently, on September 15, 2008, it was listed on Pakistan Stock 
Exchange. The registered office of the Company is situated at 18-KM Ferozepur Road, Lahore and the Company's 
business unit and factory is situated at 18-KM Lahore-Sheikhupura Road, Lahore. The Company is principally 
engaged in manufacture, procurement and sale of hydrogen peroxide and allied products. The Company commenced 
its trial production on December 1, 2008 and commercial production on March 1, 2009.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS') issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as 
notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the provisions of and 
directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Initial application of standards, amendments or an interpretation to existing standards

The following amendments to existing standards have been published that are applicable to the Company's financial 
statements covering annual periods, beginning on or after the following dates:

Standards, amendments and interpretations to approved accounting standards that are 
effective in current year

Certain standards, amendments and interpretations to IFRS are effective for accounting periods beginning on July 1, 
2021 but are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the Company’s operations (although 
they may affect the accounting for future transactions and events) and are, therefore, not detailed in these financial 
statements.

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective 
and have not been early adopted by the Company

There are certain standards, amendments to the IFRS and interpretations that are mandatory for companies having 
accounting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2022  but are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant 
effect on the Company’s operations and are, therefore, not detailed in these financial statements, except for the 
following:

1.

2.

i)

ii)

2.1

2.1.1

2.1.2
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Standards or Interpretation

Amendments to IAS 16 'Property, Plant and Equipment', prohibiting a 
company from deducting from the cost of property, plant and 
equipment amounts received from selling items produced while the 
company is preparing the asset for its intended use. January 01, 2022

Amendments to IAS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets' regarding the costs to include when assessing 
whether a contract is onerous. January 01, 2022

Amendments to IAS 8 'Accounting policies, changes in accounting 
estimates and errors. January 01, 2023

Amendment to IAS 12, 'Income taxes' on deferred tax related to assets 
and liabilities arising from a single transaction. January 01, 2023

Amendments to IAS 1, 'Presentation of financial statements’ on
classification of liabilities. January 01, 2024

The Company's is yet to assess the impact of above standards, amendments and interpretations on its financial 
statements.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention unless otherwise specifically 
stated. Figures have been rounded off to nearest thousand of rupees unless otherwise stated.

The Company's significant accounting policies are stated in note 4. Not all of these significant policies require the 
management to make difficult, subjective or complex judgments or estimates. The following is intended to provide an 
understanding of the policies the management considers critical because of their complexity, judgment of estimation 
involved in their application and their impact on these financial statements. Estimates and judgments are continually 
evaluated and are based on historical experience, including expectations of future events that are believed to be 
reasonable under the circumstances. These judgments involve assumptions or estimates in respect of future events 
and the actual results may differ from these estimates. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity 
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are as follows:

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment on a regular basis. Any change in estimate in 
future years might effect the carrying amounts of respective items of property, plant and equipment with a 
corresponding effect on the depreciation charge.

Provision for taxation 

The Company takes into account the current income tax law and the decisions taken by appellate authorities. 
Instances where the Company's views differ from the view taken by income tax department at the assessment stage 
and where the Company considers that its views on items of material nature are in accordance with law, the amounts 
are shown as contingent liabilities.

Basis of measurement3.

3.1

3.2

(i)

(ii)

Effective date (annual periods 
beginning on or after)
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits to the 
extent that future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax 
losses and tax credits can be utilized. The recoverability of deferred tax assets are analysed at each reporting period 
end and adjusted if considered necessary with a corresponding effect on deferred tax charge/income for the period.

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These 
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Employees retirement benefits

The main features of the schemes operated by the Company for its employees are as follows:

Defined contribution scheme

A recognized voluntary contributory provident fund scheme is in operation covering all permanent employees. Equal 
monthly contributions are made by the Company and employees in accordance with the rules of the scheme at 6.3% of 
the gross pay.

Accumulating compensated absences

The Company provides for accumulating compensated absences when the employees render service that increases 
their entitlement to future compensated absences. Under the Company's policy, permanent management employees 
are entitled to 10 days sick leaves and 21 days annual leaves per calendar year. Sick leaves can be accumulated up to a 
maximum number of 30 days, while unutilized annual leaves lapse and can only be encashed in case of death and not 
upon termination, resignation or retirement. The contractual employees are not entitled to carry forward sick or annual 
leaves.

Provisions are made annually to cover the obligation for accumulating compensated absences and are charged to the 
statement of profit or loss.

Taxation

Current

Provision of current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the prevailing law 
for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or tax rates expected to apply 
to the profit for the year if enacted. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, 
to provision for tax made in previous years arising from assessments framed during the year for such years.

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method in respect of all temporary differences arising from differences 
between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used 
in the computation of the taxable profit. 

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are 
recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary 
differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized.

Significant accounting policies4.

4.1

(a)

(b)

4.2

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse based on tax 
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the statement of financial position date. Deferred tax is 
charged or credited in the statement of profit or loss, except in the case of items credited or charged to equity in which 
case it is included in equity.

Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment except freehold land are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any identified 
impairment loss. Freehold land is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss. Subsequently, these assets are 
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any identified impairment loss. Cost in relation to certain property, 
plant and equipment comprises historical cost and borrowing costs referred to in note 4.15.

Depreciation on all property, plant and equipment except land is charged to profit or loss on the straight line basis so as 
to write off the historical cost of an asset over its estimated useful life at the rates given in note 16.1 without taking into 
account any residual value, which is considered insignificant.

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, at each financial year end, and adjusted if impact on 
depreciation is significant. The Company's estimate of the residual value of its property, plant and equipment as at 
June 30, 2022 has not required any adjustment.

Initial fill of catalysts is capitalized with plant and machinery whereas costs of subsequent replacements of such 
catalysts are included in property, plant and equipment and depreciated on straight line basis over their estimated 
useful lives.

The Company assesses at each statement of financial position date whether there is any indication that property, plant 
and equipment including major spare parts, catalysts and standby equipment may be impaired. If such indication 
exists, the carrying amount of such assets are reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their 
recoverable amount. Where carrying values exceed the respective recoverable amount, assets are written down to 
their recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment loss is recognized in statement of profit or loss. The 
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Where an impairment loss is 
recognized, the depreciation charge is adjusted in the future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount 
over its estimated useful life.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only 
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the 
item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are charged to statement of profit or loss during 
the period in which they are incurred. 

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference between the sale proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the asset is recognized as an income or expense. 

Capital work in progress is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss.

Major spare parts, catalyst and standby equipment qualify as property, plant and equipment when entity expects to 
use them for more than one year. Transfers are made to relevant operating fixed assets category as and when such 
items are available for use.

Right-of-use asset is measured as per note 4.5.1. 

4.3
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4.4

4.5

4.5.1

Intangible asset

Expenditure incurred to acquire intangible assets is stated at cost less accumulated amortization and any identified 
impairment loss. Intangible assets are amortized using the straight line method over its estimated useful lives at the 
rates given in note 17. Amortization is charged to statement of profit or loss.

Amortization is charged from the month the asset is acquired or capitalized while no amortization is charged in the 
month of disposal.

The Company assesses at each statement of financial position date whether there is any indication that an intangible 
asset may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amount of such assets are reviewed to assess whether 
they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying values exceed the respective recoverable 
amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment loss is recognized in 
statement of profit or loss. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in 
use. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the amortization charge is adjusted in the future periods to allocate the 
asset's revised carrying amount over its estimated useful life.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, 
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for 
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company 
assesses whether:

- the contract involves the use of an identified asset - this may be specified explicitly or implicitly, and should be 
physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset. If the supplier has a 
substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified;

- the Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout the 
period of use; and

- the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Company has this right when it has the decision-making 
rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset is used. In rare cases, where the decision 
about how and for what purpose the asset is used is predetermined, the Company has the right to direct the use of the 
asset if either:

- the Company has the right to operate the asset; or

- the Company designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose it will be used.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company allocates the 
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone prices.

Lessee

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, or if that rate cannot be readily 
determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate.

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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4.5.2

4.6

Lease payments include fixed payments, variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, amounts 
expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees, the exercise price of a purchase option if the 
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option, payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term 
reflects the lessee exercising that option, less any lease incentives receivable. The extension and termination options 
are incorporated in determination of lease term only when the Company is reasonably certain to exercise these 
options.

The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. It is re-
measured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in fixed lease payments or an index or 
rate, change in the Company's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the 
Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. The 
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-to-use asset, or is recorded in statement of 
profit or loss if the carrying amount of right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero. 

The right-of-use asset is initially measured based on the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease 
payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to 
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any 
lease incentive received. The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a straight line method over the lease term as this 
method most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits. The right-of-use asset 
is reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease liability.

The Company has elected to apply the practical expedient and not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities 
for short term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The lease payments 
associated with these leases is recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Lessor

When the Company acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an 
operating lease. To classify each lease, the Company makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers 
substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the case, then the 
lease is a finance lease; if not, then it is an operating lease. As part of this assessment, the Company considers certain 
indicators such as whether the lease is for the major part of the economic life of the asset.

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-lease 
separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the 
head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease is a short-term lease to which the Company 
applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.

The Company recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term.

Stores and spares

Stores and spares, except for the 'working solution' are valued at lower of moving average cost and net realizable value. 
Provision in stores and spares is made for slow moving and obsolete items. Items considered as unusable are written 
off against the provision. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other directly attributable 
charges incurred thereon. Working solution is valued at lower of weighted average cost determined on a yearly basis 
and net realizable value.
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4.7

4.8

4.8.1

a)

b)

c)

Stock in trade

Stock of raw materials, packing materials, work-in-process and finished goods, except for those in transit are valued 
principally at the lower of weighted average cost and net realizable value. Cost of work-in-process and finished goods 
comprises cost of direct materials, salaries of production staff and appropriate manufacturing overheads.

Materials in transit are stated at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid thereon.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs necessary to be 
incurred in order to make a sale. Provision is made in the financial statements for obsolete and slow moving stock-in-
trade based on management's estimate. Items considered as unusable are written off against the provision.

Financial instruments

Financial assets

Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flow represents solely payments of 
principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets, impairment losses, 
foreign exchange gains and losses, and gain or loss arising on derecognition are recognised directly in profit or loss. 

Fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are held within a business model whose objective is 
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the 
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding.

Fair value through profit or loss

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income or assets that 
are designated at fair value through profit or loss using fair value option, are measured at fair value through profit or 
loss. A gain or loss on debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognised 
in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises. 

Equity instrument financial assets are measured at fair value at and subsequent to initial recognition. Changes in fair 
value of these financial assets are normally recognised in profit or loss. Dividends from such investments is 
recognised in profit or loss when the Company's right to receive payment is established. Where an election is made to 
present fair value gains and losses on equity instruments in other comprehensive income there is no subsequent 
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to the statement of profit or loss following the derecognition of the 
investment.

Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given and 
received respectively. These financial assets and liabilities are subsequently remeasured to fair value, amortized cost 
or cost as the case may be. Any gain or loss on the recognition and de-recognition of the financial assets and liabilities 
is included in the statement of profit or loss for the period in which it arises. 

Financial assets are derecognized when the Company loses control of the contractual rights that comprise the 
financial asset. Assets or liabilities that are not contractual in nature and that are created as a result of statutory 
requirements imposed by the Government are not the financial instruments of the Company. 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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4.8.2

4.8.3

4.9

4.10

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. Financial liabilities at amortised cost are initially measured at fair value less transaction costs. Financial 
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in 
the statement of profit or loss. 

Financial liabilities, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the effective yield method.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired. Where an 
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender or substantially different terms, or the terms of an 
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange and modification is treated as a derecognition of the 
original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in respective carrying amounts is recognised in 
the statement of profit or loss.

Off-setting of financial assets and liabilities

A financial asset and financial liability is off-set and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position 
when there is a legally enforceable right to set-off the transaction and also there is an intention to settle on a net basis or 
to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its financial assets. The 
Company applies the simplified approach to recognise lifetime expected credit losses for trade debts, due from 
customers, contract assets, term loans, short term investments and bank balances.

Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining financial assets 
are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics.

The Company recognises in profit or loss, as an impairment gain or loss, the amount of expected credit losses (or 
reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date. 

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of 
recovery of a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Company individually makes an assessment with 
respect to the timing and amount of write-off based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The 
Company expects no significant recovery from the amount written off. However, financial assets that are written off 
could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of 
amounts due.

A financial asset is considered in default when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments within one year of 
when they fall due. However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when 
internal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts 
in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company.

Trade debts

Trade debts are amounts due from customers for sales made during the ordinary course of business. Trade debts and 
other receivables are recognized initially at invoice value, which approximates fair value, and subsequently measured 
at amortized cost using the effective interest method less expected credit losses. Bad debt are written off when 
identified.
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4.11

4.12

4.13

4.14

4.15

4.16

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the purpose of cash flow 
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, demand deposits, other short term highly liquid 
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of 
change in value and finances under mark-up arrangements. In the statement of financial position, finances under 
mark-up arrangements are included in current liabilities.

Trade and other payables 

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the 
effective interest method. Exchange gains and losses arising on translation in respect of liabilities in foreign currency 
are added to the carrying amount of the respective liabilities.

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, 
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a 
reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at year end and adjusted to reflect the current 
best estimate.

Contract balances

Contract liabilities are recognized for consideration received in respect of unsatisfied performance obligations. 
Similarly, if the Company satisfies a performance obligation before it receives the consideration, the Company 
recognises either a contract asset or a receivable in its statement of financial position, depending on whether 
something other than the passage of time is required before the consideration is due.

Foreign currency transactions and translation

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pak Rupees using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the 
transactions. All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the rates of 
exchange prevailing at the statement of financial position date. Foreign exchange gains and losses on translation are 
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. All non-monetary items are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates 
prevailing on the date of transaction or on the date when fair values are determined.

The financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Borrowing costs

Mark up, interest and other charges on borrowings are capitalized up to the date of commissioning of the respective 
plant and machinery, acquired out of the proceeds of such borrowings. All other mark-up, interest and other charges 
are charged to the statement of profit or loss.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when or as performance obligations are satisfied by the transferring control of a promised 
goods or service to a customer, and control either transfers over time or at a point in time. The control is transferred 
upon shipment or delivery depending upon the terms of trade.  The goods are primarily sold on cash. The Company 
has a range of credit terms which are typically short term, in line with market practice and without any financing 
component. The Company does not generally accept sales returns. Revenue is measured at fair value of the 
consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, rebates and other considerations payable to customers.

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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4.17

4.18

4.19

4.20

4.21

Freight revenue is recognized when services are rendered.

Return on deposits is accrued on a time proportion basis by reference to the principal outstanding and the applicable 
rate of return.

Equity

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recorded at their face value. Incremental costs directly attributable to 
issuance of new shares are shown in equity as deduction.

Dividend

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognized as a liability in the period in which the dividends are 
approved.

 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will 
be received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions. Government grants relating to costs are 
deferred and recognized in the statement of profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs that 
they are intended to compensate.

Segment reporting

Segment reporting is based on the operating (business) segments of the Company. An operating segment is a 
component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, 
whose results are regularly reviewed by the segment to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment 
and assess its performance and for which discrete financial information is available.

The segment information is not generated by the Company and the Chief Executive reviews the Company as a single 
entity. Hence, segment disclosures are not included in these financial statements.

Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated 
by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of 
ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to 
ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive 
potential ordinary shares.

5. Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

2022 2021

102,000,000 1,020,000

        

1,020,000

        

48,888,866 488,889

           

488,889

           
24,142,218 241,422 241,422

1,750,311 1,750,311

2022 2021
(Number of shares) (Rupees in thousand)

102,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each fully paid in cash

Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each issued as 

fully paid for consideration other than 

48,888,866 cash - note 5.1

24,142,218 fully paid as bonus shares - 5.2

175,031,084 175,031,084
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5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

6.

The shareholders of the Company, vide an Extraordinary General Meeting, on November 27, 2019, approved the 
increase in paid up share capital of the Company from Rs 1,020,000,000 divided into 102,000,000 ordinary shares of 
Rs 10 each to Rs 1,508,888,660 divided into 150,888,866 ordinary shares of Rs 10 each, by the issuance of 
additional 48,888,866 ordinary shares of face value of Rs 10 each, by way of otherwise than right shares of at a price 
of Rs 15 each including Rs 5 as premium per share, against the outstanding loan of Descon Engineering Limited 
('DEL') of Rs 733.33 million. 

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, vide its order dated January 10, 2020, on the basis of special 
resolution passed by members on November 27, 2019, allowed the Company to issue 48,888,866 ordinary shares of 
Rs 10 per share at a premium of Rs 5 per share to DEL by way of other than right under clause (b) of sub-section(1) of 
Section 83 of the Companies Act, 2017. The Company issued 48,888,866 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 per share at a 
premium of Rs 5 per share to DEL on January 29, 2020, against long term loan of Rs 733.33 million from DEL. 

Along with the final dividend of Re 1 per share (@ 10% per share) for the year ended June 30, 2020, bonus shares in 
the ratio of sixteen bonus shares for every hundred shares held by the shareholders was proposed in the Board of 
Directors meeting held on September 2, 2020. The approval of the members for the final dividend and issuance of 
bonus shares was obtained in the Annual General Meeting held on October 21, 2020. As a result, the Company paid the 
final dividend aggregating to Rs 150.889 million and issued 24,142,218 shares of Rs 10 each against the share 
premium.

Ordinary shares of the Company held by related parties as at year end are as follows:

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one 
vote per share at general meetings of the Company. All shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual 
assets.

Share premium

The Company issued 24,142,218 ordinary shares of Rs 10 as bonus shares as referred to in note 5.2 against share 
premium of Rs 241.422 million in terms of section 81 of the Companies Act, 2017. Outstanding amount can be utilised 
by the Company only for the purposes specified in section 81 of the Companies Act, 2017.

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Number Percentage Number Percentage

DEL Chemicals (Private) Limited       60,358,918 34.48%       60,358,918 34.48%

Descon Engineering Limited       56,711,084 32.40%       56,711,084 32.40%

Descon Corporation (Private) Limited       10,051,697 5.74%       10,051,697 5.74%

    127,121,699 72.62%     127,121,699 72.62%

2022 2021
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Syndicate term finance (STFF)

This represent outstanding balance against aggregate facility of Rs 1,100 million from syndicate of financial 
institutions to finance the capacity expansion project, completed last year. The portion of syndicate loan consisted of 
Rs 500 million partaining to Pak China Investment Company (PCIL) and Rs 600 million pertaining to Allied Bank 
Limited (ABL). As at year end, portion of STFF of Rs 174.84 million (June 30. 2021: Rs 129.61 million) from the Allied 
Bank Limited is converted into Temporary economic refinance facility (TERF) as referred to in note 7.1.3.

During the year, the company repaid the entire portion of loan from PCIL amounting to Rs 500 million. Further, the 
Company also made an early repayment of Allied Bank Limited's (ABL) portion of loan amounting to Rs 200 million.

Terms of mark-up

The facility carries mark-up at 3 month KIBOR plus 0.9% per annum (2021: three month KIBOR plus 0.9% per annum). 
The effective mark-up charged during the year ranges from 8.33% to 13.59% per annum (2021: 7.82% to 11.97% per 
annum). Mark-up is payable quarterly in arrears.

Terms of repayment

It was repayable in thirteen equal bi-annual instalments ending on October 08, 2027. However, subsequent to the year 
end on July 14, 2022 the Company has repaid the entire amount of the outstanding loan.

7.1.1

2022 2021

7 Long term finances - secured Note

Opening balance         1,107,648            223,131 

Receipts during the year                      -              929,525 

Recognition of deferred grant 10             (10,592)             (36,090)

        1,097,056         1,116,566 

Accretion of interest              17,675                6,748 

Repayment during the year           (789,662)             (15,666)

           325,069         1,107,648 

Less : Current portion shown under current liabilities 11             (67,204)           (178,470)

           257,865            929,178 

7.1         Long term finances consist of the following:

Syndicate term finance facility (STFF) 7.1.1            168,082            966,174 

Long term finance facility (LTFF) 7.1.2              14,361              41,612 

Temporary economic refinance facility (TERF) 7.1.3            142,626              99,862 

           325,069         1,107,648 

  (Rupees in thousand)  
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Security

Along with the TERF, it is secured against first charge by way of hypothecation over all present and future fixed assets 
(excluding land and building) of the Company with 25% margin aggregating to Rs 1,466.67 million.

Long term finance facility (LTFF)

This represent disbursement against aggregate facility of Rs 58.36 million from Allied Bank Limited to pay salaries and 
wages under State Bank of Pakistan's ('SBP') Refinance Scheme for payment of Wages and Salaries. The recognised 
portion as at year end is exclusive of grant of Rs 0.25 million (2021: Rs 2.2 miilion).

Terms of markup

Post approval by the SBP during the year, the facility carries markup at SBP rate plus 1% per annum (2021: SBP rate 
plus 1% per annum). The mark-up has been accrued during the year at effective rates ranging from 7.74% to 7.80% 
(2021: 7.74% to 7.80% per annum). Mark-up is payable quarterly in arrears.

Terms of repayment

The balance is repayable in two equal quarterly installments ending on November 17, 2022.

Security

It is secured by first pari passu charge over all present and future current assets of the Company with 25% margin. It is 
also secured by an aggregate sum of Rs 80 million by a ranking charge over all present and future plant and machinery 
of the Company.

Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (TERF)

This represents the amount converted from the portion of STFF obtained from Allied Bank Limited under the SBP's 
Temporary Economic Refinance Facility. Out of the available limit of Rs 174.84 million as at June 30, 2022, the 
Company has utilised Rs 174.84 million (2021: 129.61 million). The recognised portion as at year end is exclusive of 
grant of Rs 32.50 million (2021: Rs 29.75 miilion).

Terms of markup

The facility carries markup at 2.00% per annum (2021: 2.00% per annum) The mark-up has been accrued at effective 
rates ranging from 8.29% to 8.49% per annum (2021: 8.30% to 8.49% per annum). Mark-up is payable quarterly in 
arrears.

Terms of repayment

It is repayable in twenty six equal quarterly installments commencing from September 23, 2022.

Security

Along with the STFF, it is secured against  first charge by way of hypothecation over all present and future fixed assets 
(excluding land and building) of the Company with 25% margin aggregating to Rs 1,466.67 million. 

7.1.2

7.1.3

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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These represents lease liabilities in respect of generators and have an estimated remaining lease term ranging from 6 
months to 24 months as at June 30, 2022. These are discounted using the incremental borrowing rate of the Company 
ranging from 11% to 13% per annum.

The future minimum lease payments to which the Company is committed under the agreements will be due as follows:

8.1

8.2

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

2022 2021

Note (Rupees in thousand)

8. Lease liabilities

Opening balance           24,036           39,277 

Add: recognition during the year 8.1           27,796                   -   

Add: unwinding of lease liability 32             4,018             3,887 

Add: re-assessment during the year             1,238                   -   

          57,088           43,164 

Less: derecognition during the year          (10,465)                   -   

Less: repayments during the year          (20,021)          (19,128)

Present value of lease payments           26,603           24,036 

Current portion shown under current liabilities 11          (16,121)          (15,523)

          10,482             8,513 

Up to one year
From one to 

five years
Over five years

Total 

2022

Total 

2021

Minimum lease payments              18,200              10,920                      -             29,120           26,442 

Finance cost allocated to future periods               (2,079)                  (438)                      -              (2,517)            (2,406)

Present value of minimum lease payments              16,121              10,482                      -             26,603           24,036 

9. Deferred taxation Balance as at 

June 30, 2021

Charge/ 

(reversal) 

during the 

year

Balance as at 

June 30, 2022

(Rupees in thousand)

Taxable temporary difference

Accelerated tax depreciation 235,368

           

9,950

            

245,318

        
Deductible temporary differences

Tax credits (1,917)

             

1,917

            

-

                

Loss allowance against doubtful debts and provision against inventory (4,249)

             

(699)

              

(4,948)

           

(6,166)

             

1,219

            

(4,948)

           

229,202 11,169 240,370

(Rupees in thousand)
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Deferred grant has been recognized as the difference between the fair value and proceeds received under LTFF and 
TERF as referred to in note 7 in accordance with the accounting policy as referred to in note 4.18. There are no 
unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attached to this grant effecting its recognition at the reporting date. The grant 
will be amortized in line with the tenure of the LTFF and TERF.

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

                             

Balance as at 

June 30, 2020

Charge/ 

(reversal) 

during the 

year

Balance as at 

June 30, 2021

(Rupees in thousand)

Taxable temporary difference

Accelerated tax depreciation 192,368

           

43,000

          

235,368

        

Deductible temporary differences

Tax credits -

                  

(1,917)

           

(1,917)

           

Loss allowance against doubtful debts and provision against inventory (3,039)

             

(1,210)

           

(4,249)

           

(3,039)

             

(3,127)

           

(6,166)

           

           189,329           39,873         229,202 

2022 2021
Note

10. Deferred grant

Opening Balance           31,959                   -   

Recognition during the year 7           10,592           36,090 

Transfer to profit or loss 32.1            (9,796)            (4,131)

          32,755           31,959 

Represented by:

Non-current portion           24,188           24,041 

Current portion             8,567             7,918 

          32,755           31,959 

(Rupees in thousand)

2022 2021

Note (Rupees in thousand)

11. Current portion of non current liabilities

Current portion of long term finances - secured 7           67,204         178,470 

Current portion of lease liabilities 8           16,121           15,523 

          83,325         193,993 
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Finances under mark up arrangements - secured

These represent the outstanding balance against short term running finance facilities aggregating to Rs 1,100 million 
(2021: Rs 450 million) under markup arrangements from various banks to meet the working capital requirements of 
the Company. These carry markup of three months KIBOR plus 0.75% (2021: three months KIBOR plus 0.75% per 
annum). These are secured by first pari passu charge over present and future current assets of the Company and are 
also secured by way of first pari passu charge over all present and future fixed assets (excluding land and building) of 
the Company aggregating to Rs 150 million, collectively with the lenders of STFF, LTFF and TERF as referred to in note 
7. 

Aggregate facilities available for opening of letters of credit for import of machinery, raw materials and stores and letter 
of guarantees from various banks as at June 30, 2022 are Rs 699.32 million (2021: Rs 280.32 million) out of which 
the amount utilized as at June 30, 2022 is Rs 515.03 million (2021: Rs 149.41 million).

 

12.

2022 2021

Note (Rupees in thousand)
13. Trade and other payables

Trade creditors 13.1 235,360
        

123,467
        

Bills payable 215,660
        

96,684
          Contract liability 13.2 114,385

        
31,864

          Accrued liabilities 13.3 132,479

        

73,938

          Worker's profit participation fund 13.4 42,740

          

20,374

          Worker's welfare fund 13.5 25,787

          

8,342

            Other liabilities 46

                 

1,443

            
766,457

        

356,112

        

Descon Engineering Limited           36,146           31,629 

Descon Corporation (Private) Limited             1,498             1,850 

Descon Engineering Services & Technology (Private) Limited                278                   -   

Interworld Travels (Private) Limited                  25                   -   

Inspectest (Private) Limited                   -                  977 

Popular Travels and Tours                   -                    54 

          37,947           34,510 

Descon Engineering Limited                   -                    11 

Descon Power Solutions                   -                      3 

                  -                    14 

13.1         Trade creditors includes interest free amounts due to related parties in the normal course of business as follows:

13.2      Contract liability includes advance received from related parties in the normal course of business as follows:
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Includes royalty payable to Descon (Private) Limited of Rs 6.73 million (2021: Rs 3.39 million).

The Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan ('SCP') in its decision dated August 13, 2020 held that Gas Infrastructure 
Development Cess ('GIDC'), as initially levied through Gas Infrastructure Development Cess Act, 2011 and modified 
via different notifications issued from time to time and thereafter re-levied through the Gas Infrastructure Development 
Cess Ordinance, 2014, stands payable to Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited (SNGPL) in twenty four (24) equal 
monthly installments with immediate effect.

13.3

ii)

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2022 2021

(Rupees in thousand)

13.4 Workers' profit participation fund

Opening balance           20,374           31,716 

Provision for the year           42,740           20,374 

Payments during the year          (20,374)          (31,716)

Closing balance           42,740           20,374 

13.5 Worker's welfare fund

Opening balance             8,342           13,555 

Provision for the year           17,445             7,709 

Payments during the year                   -            (12,922)

Closing balance           25,787             8,342 

14. Accrued finance costs

Long term finances - secured 5,726

            

19,149

          

Finances under mark up arrangements - secured 3,123

            

1,714

            

8,849

           

20,863

15. Contingencies and commitments

15.1 Contingencies

I)            Descon Oxychem Limited has issued guarantees to the following parties:

104,482 50,000

3,500 3,500

Against performance of contracts:

Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited

Pakistan State Oil Company Limited

Al-Technique Corporation of Pakistan 18,700 -

126,682 53,500
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Pursuant to the order of the SCP, SNGPL raised a demand for the collection of the GIDC arrears. The company filed a 
writ petition under article 199 of the Constitution of Islamic Republic of Pakistan,1973 in the Honorable Lahore High 
Court ('HLHC') against the demand raised, pleading that demanding arrears of GIDC are illegal, unlawful and ultra vires 
to the first proviso to section 8 (2) of the Gas Infrastructure Development Cess Act, 2015. The writ petition was 
decided in favor of the Company by HLHC vide its order dated June 17, 2021. SNGPL has filed an intra-court appeal in 
HLHC against the aforesaid order which is pending adjudication.

The Company's legal advisor is of the opinion that the judgement of the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan does not 
apply to arrears under the Gas Infrastructure Development Cess Act, 2011 and Gas Infrastructure Development 
Ordinance 2014 that are, in terms of first proviso of section 8 (2) of the Gas Infrastructure Development Cess Act, 
2015, not to be collected. The applicability of first proviso of section 8 (2) is subject to the determination by High Level 
Committee ('Committee') of Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited. The decision has not been made by the Committee on 
the applicability of arrears to the Company uptil the decision of the Committee, the Company has provided guarantee of 
Rs 55.32 million to SNGPL. The Company is hopeful of a favourable outcome. Accordingly, the Company has not 
recognised the provision of Rs 55.32 million in these financial statements.

Commitments

The Company has the following commitments in respect of:

Letters of credit for capital expenditure amounting to Rs 10.52 million (2021: Rs 21.66 million).

Letters of credit other than capital expenditure amounting to Rs 188.68 million (2021: Rs 92.81 million).

Post dated cheques issued in favour of National Tariff Commission of Pakistan and Collector of customs aggregating to 
Rs 2.38 million (2021: Rs 2.38 million).

15.2

I)

ii)

iii)

2022 2021

16. Property, plant and equipment Note (Rupees in thousand)

16.1 2,127,348
     

2,168,190
     

16.2 23,092
          

22,039
          

16.3 228,530

        
144,842

        

Operating assets

- owned assets

- right of use assets

Capital work-in-progress [including in transit of 

    Rs 6.98 million (2021: Rs 3.44 million)]

Major spare parts, catalysts and standby equipment 16.4 110,861

        

104,509

        2,489,830 2,439,580
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Immovable fixed assets of the Company are situated at plant, 18 KM Lahore-Sheikhupura Road, Lahore. Freehold land 
represents 224 Kanal of land situated at 18 KM Lahore-Sheikhupura Road, Lahore out of which approximately 104 
Kanal represents covered area.

All assets are in name of the Company and in Company's possession and control. 

16.1.3

16.1.4

        

The cost of fully depreciated assets which are still in use as at June 30, 2022 is Rs 54.13 million (2021: Rs 48.70 
million).

16.1.1

          

2022 2021

Note (Rupees in thousand)
16.1.2 The depreciation charge has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales 27 324,674

        

291,169

        
Administrative expenses 28 2,186 1,030

Distribution and selling costs 29 179 183

327,039 292,382

2022 2021

Note (Rupees in thousand)

16.2 Right of use assets

Opening 22,039
          

36,732
          

Additions during the year 27,796
          

-
                Re-assessment during the year 1,238

            
-

                Derecognition during the year (9,595)

           

-

                Depreciation charged during the year 16.2.1 (18,386)

         

(14,693)

         Net book value at end of the year 23,092

          

22,039

          

16.3 Capital work-in-progress

Plant and machinery 195,801

        

118,705

        

Civil works 15,182

          

5,851

            

Others 12,713 17,235

Advances to suppliers and contractors 4,834 3,051

228,530 144,842

16.2.1       Depreciation expense relating to the right of use assets has been recognised in cost of sales.

16.3.1         Reconciliation of the carrying amount is as follows:
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Balance as at 

July 01, 2021

Expenditure 

incurred during 

the year

Borrowing cost 

capitalized 

during the year

Inter 

classification

Transfers to 

operating 

assets

Balance as at 

June 30, 2022

118,705

 

247,541

           

-

                  

858

                  

(171,303)

       

195,801

        
3,051

 

4,834

               

-

                  

-

                  

(3,051)

           

4,834

            
5,851

 

31,229

             

-

                  

(858)

                

(21,040)

         

15,182

          
17,235

 

16,914

             

-

                  

-

                  

(21,436)

         

12,713

          
144,842

 

300,518

           

-

                  

-

                  

(216,830)

       

228,530

        
Balance as at 

July 01, 2020

Expenditure 

incurred during 

the year

Borrowing cost 

capitalized 

during the year

Inter 

classification

Transfers to 

operating 

assets

Balance as at 

June 30, 2021

323,615

 

109,237

           

 -   (432,852)

         

-

                

-

                

387,716

 

463,234

           

 -   595,311

           

(1,327,556)

    

118,705

        

-

                

78,804 39,666  -   (115,419) - 3,051

4,620 18,917 - (17,686) 5,851

28,591 40,452 4,358 (47,040) (9,126) 17,235

823,346 671,506 4,358 - (1,354,368) 144,842

2022

(Rupees in thousand)

2021

(Rupees in thousand)

                                                     

The capital work in progress as at June 30, 2022 mainly includes expenditure incurred on food grade plant and 
hydrogen recycle compressor. 

Expenditure incurred during the year includes Rs 29.78 million (2021: Rs 437.31 million) charged by Descon 
Engineering Limited and Rs 8.8 million (2021: Nil) charged by Descon Engineering Services Technology (Pvt) Limited 
in connection with the capital projects.

The capacity expansion project to increase the production capacity by 25%, undertaken in 2019, was completed 
during the last year and the Company transferred the aggregate expenditure of Rs 1,268 million on the capacity 
expansion project from capital work in progress to the operating assets.

16.3.2

16.3.3

16.3.4

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Plant and machinery 

      Advances to suppliers 

and contractors

          
Civil works

          
Others

        

      

Technical fee

      

Plant and machinery 

      

Advances to suppliers

 and contractors

Civil works

Others

2022 2021

Note (Rupees in thousand)

16.4 Major spare parts, catalysts and standby equipment

The reconciliation of the carrying amount is as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year 104,509

        

62,071

          Additions during the year 38,557

          

57,452

          Transfers made during the year (32,205)

         

(15,014)

         Balance at the end of the year 110,861 104,509
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2022 2021

Note (Rupees in thousand)
                

17. Intangible assets

Net carrying value basis

Opening net book value (NBV) 20,123

          

27,318

          

Additions (at cost) 14,730

          

453

               

Amortization charge 17.1 (7,881)

           

(7,648)

           

Closing net book value 17.2 26,972

          

20,123

          

Gross carrying value basis

Cost 59,241

          

44,511

          

Accumulated amortization (32,269)

         

(24,388)

         

Net book value 26,972

          

20,123

          

Amortization rate % per annum 10% - 33.33% 10% - 33.33%

17.1 Amortization charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales 27 7,590 7,648

Administrative expenses 28 291 -

7,881 7,648

As at June 30, 2022, carrying value of Distributed Control System is Rs 9.24 million (2021: Rs 15.72 million) and Data 
Recovery System is Rs 14.73 million (2021: Nil). Their remaining useful lives are 1.4 years and 2 years respectively as 
at June 30, 2022. The residual value of these intangible assets is insignificant.

This represent the interest free loan provided by the company to one of its executive employees in accordance with the 
terms of employment. The loan is secured against the property documents. The loan is recoverable over a period of 
five years. The amount of loan has been discounted using the market rate as at the reporting date and the 
corresponding discounting impact has been recognised as prepaid employee benefits.

Directors of the Company were not given any loan during the year. 

17.2

18.1

2022 2021

18. Long term loans - secured (Rupees in thousand)

Due from employees - considered good 10,000

          
-

                Present value adjustment (3,975)

           

-

                6,025

            

-
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2022 2021

19. Long term deposits and prepayments Note (Rupees in thousand)

Long term deposits 19.1 20,634
          

17,554
          

Prepaid employee benefits 18.1 2,789
            

-
                

23,423
          

17,554
          

19.1            These are in the normal course of business and are interest free.

20. Stores and spares

20.1 321,141

        

174,540

        
195,433

        

171,159

        

General stores and spares [including 

      in transit of Rs 8.17 million (2021: Rs 0.32 million)]

Working solution

Provision for obsolescence (6,658)

           

(6,658)

           
509,916

        

339,041

        

21. Stock in trade

206,166

        

104,762

        

21.1 16,748

          

13,942

          

639

               

639

               

Raw materials [including in transit of Rs 92.45 million

(2021: Rs 40.01 million)]

Work-in-process

Finished goods

- purchased for resale

- own manufactured [including in transit Rs 0.04 million

(2021: Nil)] 21.2 25,263

          

35,214

          

248,816

        

154,557

        

21.1

21.2

22. Trade debts

Considered good 22.1         237,383           72,448 

Considered doubtful             6,189             6,971 

        243,572           79,419 

Loss allowance 22.2            (6,189)            (6,971)

        237,383           72,448 

22.1

22.2 Loss allowance

Balance as at July 1             6,971                877 

Recognition of loss allowance               (782)             6,094 

Balance as at June 30             6,189             6,971 

Includes provision for obsolete stock of Rs 0.2 million (2021: Rs 0.2 million).

These include Rs 228.38 million (2021: Rs 53.28 million) secured by way of inland letter of credit.

20.1         General stores and spares include raw material for working solution of Rs 127 million (2021: Rs 31.10 million).

Work-in-process include unused packing material of Rs 16.75 million (2021: Rs 13.94 million).
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23. Loans, advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables

24,986

          

11,038

          

1,338

            

275

               

45,285

          

85,821

          

short term loans to employees - considered good 2,063

            

783

               

6,915

            

9,515

            

4,631

            

1,889

            

23.1 22,026

          

25,541

          

577

               

-

                

107,821

        

134,862

        

Advances to suppliers

 - Considered good

 - Considered doubtful

Sales tax recoverable - considered good

Advances to employees and

Security deposits

Prepayments

Contract asset

Other receivables

Loss allowance for doubtful advances 23.2 (1,338)

           

(275)

              

106,483

        

134,587

        

23.1 Movement of contract asset against contract with customers 

   is as follows:

Opening balance           25,541             4,493 

Sales during the year         707,800         729,125 

Reclassified to trade debts        (711,315)        (708,077)

Balance as at June 30 23.1.1           22,026           25,541 

23.1.1 These are secured by way of inland letter of credit.

23.2 Movement of loss allowance for doubtful advances is as follows:

Opening balance                275                275 

Recognition of loss allowance             1,063                   -   

Balance as at June 30             1,338                275 

24. Short term investments 2022 2021 2022 2021

(Rupees in thousand)

NBP Money Market Fund              15,104              28,314         150,000         280,264 

NBP Financial Sector Income Fund                      -                26,596                   -           280,358 

             15,104              54,909         150,000         560,622 

 Units 

in '000  Value 

2022 2021

Note (Rupees in thousand)
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Subsequent to the year end the entity has disposed off these investments.

Movement of short term investments, designated as investment at fair value through profit or loss, is as follows:

24.1

24.2

2022 2021

(Rupees in thousand)

Opening balance         560,622                   -   

Investments made during the year 150,000         550,000 

Dividends received re-invested                   -               9,816 

Unrealised gain on remeasurement                   -                  806 

Investments redeemed during the year        (560,622)                   -   

        150,000         560,622 

24.3         Fair value as at year end has been determined based on quoted prices (level 1 inputs).

Note

25. Bank balances

30,644

          

43,365

          

At banks on:

- Current accounts

- Saving accounts 25.1 75,527

          

13,941

          

106,171 57,306

25.1 These carry mark up at the rate of 6.25% to 10.62% (2021: 5.5% to 6.5%) per annum.

26. Sales

4,861,269

     

3,300,148

     

180,343

        

34,967

          

26.1 5,041,612

     

3,335,115

     

(95,245)

         

(59,526)

         

Gross sales

- Local

- Export

Commission on sales

Sales tax (695,874)

       

(470,686)

       

4,250,493

     

2,804,903

     

26.1 Gross sales include following recognised at a point in time:

4,733,151 2,975,575

226,732 303,501

Hydrogen peroxide

- Own manufactured

- Purchase for resale

Freight recovered 81,729 56,039

5,041,612 3,335,115

Revenue has been recognized at a point in time for both local and export sales made during the year.26.2
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Out of opening contract liabilities, Rs 31.86 million (2021: Rs 43.63 million) has been recognised as revenue during 
the year.

Sales to one customer represented 14.28% (2021: 22.33%). Furthermore, aggregate sales to the distributors 
represented 75.92% (2021: 73.87%) of the revenue and each distributor individually exceeded 10% of the revenue.

26.3

26.4

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousand)

27. Cost of sales

1,716,515
     

855,824
        

7,520
            

5,941
            27.1 153,047

        

129,420

        75,809

          

89,812

          37,181

          

33,703

          420,467

        

316,261

        1,721

            

2,016

            
54,474

          

48,035

          
2,766

            

1,718

            
1,024

            

1,038

            
27.2 6,228

            

9,508

            16.1.2 324,674

        

291,169

        

16.2.1 18,386

          

14,693

          

17.1 7,590

            

7,648

            

13,859

          

14,175

          

2,138

            

1,753

            

17,075

          

9,171

            

2,860,474

     

1,831,885

     

13,942

          

8,702

            

(16,748)

         

(13,942)

         

(2,806)

           

(5,240)

           

2,857,668

     

1,826,645

     

35,214

          

99,872

          

(25,263)

         

(35,214)

         

9,951

            

64,658

          

2,867,619

     

1,891,303

     

225,186 255,828

Raw material consumed

Packing materials

Salaries, wages and other benefits

Repair and maintenance

Shut down expenses

Fuel and power

Quality assurance

Services through contractors

Traveling 

Communication

Rent and rates

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment:

- owned assets

- right of use assets

Amortization of intangible assets

Insurance

Safety items consumed

Miscellaneous

Opening work in process

Closing work in process

Cost of goods produced

Opening finished goods

Closing finished goods

Cost of goods sold - own manufactured

Cost of goods purchased for resale

Cost of services 55,883 44,831

3,148,688 2,191,962
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Salaries, wages and other benefits include Rs 4.56 million (2021: Rs 4.33 million) in respect of provident fund 
contribution by the Company.

These primarily represent expenses incurred in respect of short term leases not recognised as a lease liability and 
variable lease payments not included in the measurement of lease liabilities. 

Salaries, wages and other benefits include Rs 1.30 million (2021: Rs 1.53 million) in respect of provident fund 
contribution by the Company.

Legal and professional fee

The charges for legal and professional services include the following in respect of auditors services for (excluding 
sales tax):

27.1

27.2

28.1

28.2

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2022 2021

Note (Rupees in thousand)
28. Administrative expenses

Salaries, allowances and other benefits 28.1 67,935
          

50,260
          Vehicle running and maintenance 2,545

            

1,618

            Entertainment 1,735

            

298

               Communication 721

               

2,005

            Printing and stationery 3,027

            

2,753

            
Traveling and conveyance 1,512

            

1,947

            
Repair and maintenance 467

               

1,981

            
Insurance 46

                 

31

                 
Fees and subscriptions 21,139

          

18,604

          

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 16.1.2 2,186

            

1,030

            

Amortization of intangible assets 17.1 291

               

-

                

Legal and professional fee 28.2 11,592

          

13,227

          

Assets written off 5,928 -

Others 7,213 5,628

126,338 99,382

2022 2021

Note (Rupees in thousand)

Statutory audit 2,475
            

2,153
            

Half yearly review 851
               

741
               

Certification charges 864
               

751
               Out of pocket expenses 175

               
245

               4,365

            

3,890
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Salaries, wages and other benefits include Rs 0.48 million (2021: Rs 0.44 million) in respect of provident fund 
contribution by the Company.

This represents royalty charged by Descon (Private) Limited, a related party due to common directorship, located at 
Descon Headquarters, 18-Km, Ferozepur Road, Lahore. During the current year, the Company paid royalty of Rs 17.93 
million (2021: Rs 10.59 million) to Descon (Private) Limited.

29.1

29.2

2022 2021

Note (Rupees in thousand)
29. Distribution and selling costs

Salaries, allowances and other benefits 29.1 15,877

          

11,084

          
Communication 613

               

447

               
Traveling and conveyance 2,160

            

4,166

            
Advertisement 47

                 

107

               

Insurance 117

               

-

                

Freight and forwarding 23,832

          

15,897

          

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 16.1.2 179

               

183

               

Fees and subscriptions 2,046

            

2,337

            

Royalty 29.2 21,265

          

13,978

          

Net impairment (reversed)/loss on trade debts 22.2 (782) 6,094

Others 8,842 2,333

74,196 56,626

30. Other income

Income from financial assets

Interest on bank deposits 7,608

            

3,937

            Dividend income from short term investments -

                

11,548

          Realised gain on sale of short term investments 725

               

-

                
Unrealised gain on investments

- carried at fair value through profit or loss -

                

806

               
8,333

            

16,291

          
Income from non-financial assets

Liabilities no longer required written back 10,894

          

-

                

Scrap sales 6,949

            

4,855

            

Foreign indenting commission 1,926

            

1,425

            

Gain on extinguishment of lease liability 870

               

-

                

Exchange gain -

                

3,375

            

Net gain on insurance claim of assets written off 93

                 

169

               

Gain on sale of fixed assets 58

                 

-

                

Others - 291

20,790 10,115

29,123 26,406
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This represents donation Nil (2021: Rs 1 million) to Pakistan Chemical Manufacturers Association ('PCMA') for 
development activities. The Chief Executive Officer of the Company is a member of PCMA.

Amortisation of deferred grant of Rs 9.80 million (2021: Rs 4.13 million) has been netted off against the markup on 
long term finances.

The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs to be capitalised is the average interest rate 
applicable to the entity’s borrowings during the year, which was Nil (2021: 8.03%).

The provision for current taxation represents tax under 'Final Tax Regime', and 'Normal Tax Regime' under section 4,  
'Income taxable as separate block of income' under section 5 and Alternative Corporate Tax (ACT) under section 113C 
of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The enactment of the Finance Act 2022 has increased the applicable tax rate to the 
Company from 29% to 39% for the tax year 2022 and to 33% for 2023 onwards due to imposition of super tax.

31.1

31.1

31.2

33.1

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

                    

                    

31. Other operating expenses

Worker's profit participation fund 13.4           42,740           20,374 

Worker's welfare fund 13.5           17,445             7,709 

Loss on disposal of assets                   -               1,620 

Exchange loss           15,195                   -   

Donations 31.1                   -               1,000 

          75,380           30,703 

2022 2021

32. Finance costs Note (Rupees in thousand)

32.1 39,360
          

          56,782 

4,400

            
4,991

            8 4,018

            

3,887

            47,778

          

65,660

          16.3 & 32.2 -

                

(4,358)

           
47,778

          

61,302

          

Interest and mark-up on:

  - long term finances - secured

  - finances under markup arrangements - secured

  - lease liabilities

Amount capitalised

Bank charges 4,790

            

3,389

            

52,568

          

64,691

          

2022 2021

(Rupees in thousand)33. Taxation

320,400

        

64,704

          
-

                

4,665

            

320,400 69,369

Current tax:

  - Current year

  - Prior year

Deferred tax 11,169 39,873

331,569 109,242
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Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share has not been presented as the Company does not have any convertible instruments in issue 
as at June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021, which would have any effect on the earnings per share if the option to convert 
is exercised. 

34.2

2022 2021

% %
33.2 Tax charge reconciliation

29.00            29.00            

-

                

0.64

              10.30

            

-

                3.51

              

-

                -

                

(0.61)

             
-

                

(0.42)

             
(1.49)

             

(0.45)

             
12.32

            

(0.84)

             

Numerical reconciliation between the average effective tax rate 

  and the applicable tax rate

Applicable tax rate

Effect of prior period charge

Effect of super tax

Effect of rate change

Effect of tax credits and losses

Tax effect under income charged at lower rates

Tax effect under presumptive tax regime and others

Average effective tax rate charged to statement of profit or loss 41.32

            

28.16

            2022 2021
34. Earnings per share

34.1 Basic earnings per share 

Rupees in thousand 470,877 278,703

Number in thousand 175,031 175,031

Profit for the year

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Earnings per share Rupees 2.69 1.59
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2022 2021

Note (Rupees in thousand)

35 Cash generated from operations

802,446        387,945        

16.1.2 327,039

        

292,382

        16.2 18,386

          

14,693

          17 7,881

            

7,648

            21.2 -

                

(1,500)

           
29 (782)

              

6,094

            
23.2 1,063

            

-

                    
30 (58)

                

1,620

            
30 (7,608)

           

(3,919)

           

30 -

                

(11,548)

         

30 (725)

              

-

                    

31 -

                

(806)

              

31 15,195

          

-

                    

32 52,568

          

64,691

          
1,215,404

     

757,300

        

(170,875)

       

(19,248)

         

(94,259)

         

30,001

          

(164,153)

       

(23,602)

         

25,147

          

(13,058)

         
395,150 (52,931)

(8,990) (78,838)

Profit before taxation

Adjustment for:

-  Depreciation on property, plant and equipment:

- owned assets

- right of use assets

-  Amortization of intangible assets

-  Net reversal for obsolete stock in trade

-  Net impairment (reversed)/ loss on trade debts

-  Loss allowance for doubtful advances

-  (Gain)/ loss on disposal of fixed assets

-  Interest on bank deposits

-  Dividend income

-  Realised gain on investment

-  Unrealised gain on investment

-  Net exchange loss

-  Finance costs

Profit before working capital changes

Effect on cash flow due to working capital changes:

(Increase)/ decrease in current assets

-  Stores and spares

-  Stock in trade

-  Trade debts 

-  Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables

Increase/ (decrease) in current liabilities

-  Trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations 1,206,414 678,462
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36. Cash and cash equivalents

Finances under mark up arrangements - secured 12 (14,620) (57,500)

Bank balances 25 106,171 57,306

91,551 (194)

Transactions with related parties

The related parties comprise associated companies, key management personnel, post-employment benefit plan and 
other related parties. The Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions with various related 
parties. Transactions with related parties are carried out on mutually agreed terms and conditions. Amounts due from 
and due to related parties are shown under receivables and payables and remuneration of the key management 
personnel is disclosed in note 38. Significant related party transactions have been disclosed in respective notes in 
these financial statements, other than the following:

37.

37.1

2022 2021

the Company (Rupees in thousand)

Descon Corporation (Private) Limited Significant influence Share of common expenses 

over the Company charged by the related party 21,489 18,341

       Share of common expenses 

charged to the related party 3,675

         

3,745

         
Purchase of goods and services 8,786

         

13,537

       

Payment of ordinary dividend 8,544

         

7,417

         

Issuance of bonus shares of Rs 10 each -

             

13,960

       
Descon Engineering Limited Significant influence Purchase of goods and services 31,268

       

        84,791 

over the Company Services rendered by the related party 

for capital projects 29,777

       

      437,308 

Sale of goods 741

            

          1,402 

Share of common expenses 

charged by the related party 15,021

       

          8,410 

Share of common expenses 

charged to the related party -

             

          2,522 

Payment of ordinary dividend 48,204

       

        41,556 

Issuance of bonus shares of Rs 10 each -

             

        78,222 

DEL Chemicals (Private) Limited Common directorship Payment of ordinary dividend 51,305

       

        44,229 

Issuance of bonus shares of Rs 10 each - 83,254

Interworld Travels (Private) Limited Common directorship Purchase of goods and services 3,087           1,000 

Payment of ordinary dividend -                78 

Issuance of bonus shares of Rs 10 each -              147 

Popular Travel & Tours Common directorship Purchase of goods and services -              492 

Name of the related party Relationship with Transactions during the year
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2022 2021

the Company (Rupees in thousand)
                    

         

             

             

             

Inspectest (Private) Limited Common directorship Purchase of goods and services 15,045

       

        15,005 

Share of common expenses charged by 

the related party -

             

             400 

Transport services provided to

the related party -

             

               75 

Descon Holdings (Private) Limited Common directorship Payment of ordinary dividend -

             

          1,062 

Issuance of bonus shares of Rs 10 each -

             

          1,999 

Descon Engineering Services and Common directorship Purchase of services 8,814

         

               -   

Technology (Private) Limited

Descon Oxychem Limited - Provident Fund Trust Expense charged in respect

Employees Provident Fund Trust of provident fund 6,443           6,161 

Descon Power Solutions Common directorship Sale of goods - 67

Transport services provided to

the related party - 75

Descon (Private) Limited Common directorship Royalty charged to the company 21,265 13,978

Name of the related party Relationship with Transactions during the year

                  

                  

                        

38. Remuneration of Chief Executive, Directors and Executives

30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June

Note 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

Remuneration 18,034

         

18,790

             

5,785

               

3,038

               

33,523

          

24,633

          

Fee 38.1 -

              

 -   3,119

               

4,048

               

-

                

 -   

Contribution to 

provident fund 1,007

           

1,067

               

364

                  

132

                  

1,692

            

1,481

            

Car allowance 1,164 873 - - 3,846 3,137

Medical facility 92 334 - - 201 270

Bonus - 4,627 - - - 4,566

Membership Subscription 68 - - - - -

Reimbursable expenses 179 926 - 2,001 2,071

20,544 26,617 9,268 7,218 41,263 36,158

Number of persons 1 1 6 5 8 7

Chief Executive Non-Executive Directors Executives

( Rupees in thousand )
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This includes an aggregate amount of Rs 1.75 million (2021: Rs 1.75 million) in respect of fee to 3 independent 
directors (2021: 3 independent directors).

Following are directors and key management personnel with whom the Company had entered into transactions or had 
arrangements/agreements in place during the year:

38.1

38.2

Basis of relationship

Director 0.0003%

Director 0.0003%

Director 0.0003%

Director 0.0003%

Director 0.0003%

Director 0.0003%

Director 0.0003%

Chief Executive Officer None

Key Management Personnel None

Key Management Personnel None

Key Management Personnel None

Key Management Personnel None

Key Management Personnel None

Key Management Personnel None

Key Management Personnel None

Key Management Personnel None

38.3       The Company has provided a long term loan as mentioned in note 18 to one of its key management personnel.

39. Capacity and Production

2022 2021 2022 2021

Production of hydrogen peroxide              21,000              21,000 20,275

          

16,408

          

(on 100% concentration and

based on 355 working days)

Production of packing material         1,080,000         1,080,000 913,930 781,290

(based on 355 working days)

Production Capacity Actual production

Metric tonnes

Aggregate % of shareholding 

in the Company

Number

Name

Taimoor Dawood

Farooq Nazir

Faisal Dawood

Mehreen Dawood

Ali Asrar Hossain Aga 

Asif Qadir

Haroon Waheed

Muhammad Mohsin Zia

Muhammad Mushfiq Hussain

Muhammad Rizwan Qaiser

Tauheed Ahmed Khan

Adil Akbar

Aqsa Rustam

Azhar Ali

Fawad Ul Islam Hirani

Afzal Ali
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Financial risk management objectives

Financial risk factors

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, other price risk 
and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk management programme focuses on the 
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Board of Directors (the Board).

Market risk

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future commercial transactions or receivables 
and payables that exist due to transactions in foreign currencies. The Company is exposed to foreign currency 
exchange risk in respect of commitments against letters of credit in foreign currency. The management does not view 
hedging as being financially feasible.

The Company is exposed to currency risk arising only with respect to the Unites States Dollar (USD). Currently, the 
Company's foreign exchange risk exposure is restricted to the amounts receivable from / payable to the foreign 
entities. The Company's exposure to currency risk is as follows:

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the US Dollar exchange rate, with 
all other variables held constant, of the Company's profit before tax and equity. The Company's exposure to foreign 
currency changes for all other currencies is not material.

40.

40.1

(a)

(I)

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2022 2021
(FCY in thousand)

Trade debts - US Dollars                   -                     -   

Trade creditors - US Dollars             1,010                506 

The following significant exchange rates were applicable during the year:

Rupees per USD

Average rate           179.78           159.85 

Reporting date rate           206.00           158.35 

Change in 

Exchange Rate

Effect on 

Profit before tax 

Effect on 

Equity

2022 10%          (20,802)          (12,207)

-10%           20,802           12,207 

2021 10%            (8,013)            (5,689)

-10%             8,013             5,689 

(Rupees in thousand)
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Other price risk

Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those 
changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar 
financial instruments traded in the market. The Company is not exposed to equity price risk as it does not have any 
exposure in equity securities. 

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates. Borrowings obtained at variable rates expose the Company to cash flow 
interest rate risk.

As the Company has no significant interest-bearing assets, the Company's income and operating cash flows are 
substantially independent of changes in market interest rates. 

At the statement of financial position date, the interest rate profile of the Company's interest bearing financial 
instruments was:

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. 
Therefore, a change in interest rate at the balance sheet date would not affect profit or loss of the Company. The impact 
of changes in average effective interest rate for the year is given below:

(ii)

(iii)

2022 2021

(Rupees in thousand)

75,527
          

13,941
          

26,603

          

24,036

          

325,069

        

1,107,648

     

Financial assets

Floating rate instruments

Saving accounts

Financial liabilities

Fixed rate instruments

Lease liabilities

Floating rate instruments

Long term finances - secured

Finances under mark up arrangements - secured 14,620

          

57,500

          

339,689

        

1,165,148

     366,292

        

1,189,184
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Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by 
failing to discharge an obligation. Company's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade debts, advances, term 
deposits and its balances at banks. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. 
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was as follows:

(b)

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

Increase/ 

decrease in 

rate

Effect on 

profit before 

tax

Effect on 

Equity

(Rupees in thousand)

Financial assets

2022 1% 755 443 

-1% (755) (443)

2021 1% 139 99 

-1% (139) (99)

Financial liabilities

2022 1% (3,663) (2,149)

-1% 3,663 2,149 

2021 1% (11,892) (8,443)

-1% 11,892 8,443 

2022 2021
(Rupees in thousand)

29,448
          

17,554
          237,383

        
72,448

          

53,927

          

46,094

          150,000

        

560,622

        
106,171

        

57,306

          
576,929

        

754,024

        

34,887

          

68,163

          
54,534

          

3,330

            

129,930

        

955

               

18,032 -

Long term loan, term deposits and prepayments

Trade debts

Advances, deposits, prepayments and 

  other receivables

Short term investments

Bank balances

As of June 30, age analysis of trade debts was as follows:

Not past due

- 1 to 30 days

- 31 to 60 days

- 61 to 120 days

- above 120 days - -

237,383 72,448
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The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counter parties are banks with reasonably high credit ratings. The 
Company believes that it is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk as its exposure is spread over a large 
number of counter parties and trade debts are subject to specific credit ceilings. The Company also holds collateral 
against credit customers.

Credit risk for long term loans to employees and advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables is 
insignificant as it mainly includes recoverable from secured contract asset and suppliers with whom the Company 
regularly enters into business.

The credit quality of bank balances that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external 
credit ratings (if available) or to historical information about counterparty default rate:

Rating

Long term Agency 2022 2021

Bank balances

Habib Metropolitan Bank A1+ AA+ PACRA 51,317

          

17,157

          Allied Bank Limited A1+ AAA PACRA 932

               

-

                Bank Alfalah A1+ AA+ PACRA 15,361

          

13,253

          Bank of Punjab A1+ AA+ PACRA 20

                 

-

                Bank Al-Habib Limited A1+ AAA PACRA 38,541

          

26,896

          
        106,171           57,306 

Short term investments

NBP Money Market Fund Not applicable AA PACRA         150,000         280,264 

NBP Financial Sector Income Fund Not applicable A+ PACRA                   -           280,358 

        150,000         560,622 

Rating

Short term

(Rupees in thousand)

Due to the Company's long standing business relationships with these counterparties and after giving due 
consideration to their strong financial standing, management does not expect non-performance by these counter 
parties on their obligations to the Company. Accordingly, the credit risk is minimal.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities.

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient bank balances and the availability of funding through an 
adequate credit facilities. At June 30, 2022 the Company had borrowing limits available from financial institutions 
aggregating to Rs  1,100 million (2021: Rs  1,100 million) for long term loans, Rs 1,100 million (2021: Rs 450 million) 
for short term borrowings, Rs 150 million (2021: Rs  561 million) under short term investments and Rs 106.17 million 
(2021: Rs 57.31 million) in bank balances. The Company follows an effective cash management and planning policy 
to ensure availability of funds and to take appropriate measures for new requirements.

c)
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All of the following financial liabilities are exposed to profit / mark-up rate risk except trade and other payables, dividend 
payable and accrued finance cost. 

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate their fair 
values. Fair value is determined on the basis of objective evidence at each reporting date.

Financial instruments by categories

40.2

40.3

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Rupees in thousand)

Carrying Contractual Less than Between 1 Over

amount cash flows 1 year and 5 years 5 years

Long term finances - secured 325,069
           

357,824
           

67,204
             

245,117
        

45,503
          

Lease liabilities 26,603
             

29,120
             

16,121
             

10,920
          

-
                Finances under mark up 

arrangements - secured 14,620

             

14,620

             

14,620

             

-

                

-

                Trade and other payables 652,072

           

652,072

           

652,072

           

-

                

-

                Dividend payable 3,237

               

3,237

               

3,237

               

-

                

-

                Accrued finance costs 8,849

               

8,849

               

8,849

               

-

                

-

                
1,030,450

        

1,065,722

        

762,103

           

256,037

        

45,503

          
(Rupees in thousand)

Carrying Contractual Less than Between 1 Over

amount cash flows 1 year and 5 years 5 years

Long term finances - secured 1,107,648

        

1,143,768

        

178,470

           

690,550

        

274,748

        

Lease liabilities 24,036

             

26,442

             

17,622

             

8,820

            

-

                

Finances under mark up 

arrangements - secured 57,500

             

57,500

             

57,500

             

-

                

-

                

Trade and other payables 324,248

           

324,248

           

324,248

           

-

                

-

                

Dividend payable 2,222 2,222 2,222 - -

Accrued finance costs 20,863 20,863 20,863 - -

1,536,517 1,575,043 600,925 699,370 274,748

At June 30, 2022

At June 30, 2021
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2022 2021

(Rupees in thousand)

Long term loans, term deposits and prepayments 29,448
          

17,554
          

Trade debts 237,383

        

72,448

          Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables           53,927           46,094 

Bank balances         106,171           57,306 

        426,929         193,402 

2022 2021

(Rupees in thousand)

Short term investments         150,000         560,622 

2022 2021

(Rupees in thousand)

Long term finances - secured         325,069      1,107,648 

Lease liabilities           26,603           24,036 

Finances under mark up arrangements - secured           14,620           57,500 

Trade and other payables         652,072         324,248 

Dividend payable             3,237             2,222 

Accrued finance costs             8,849           20,863 

     1,030,450      1,536,517 

 Financial assets at amortised 

cost 

 Financial assets at fair value 

through profit or loss 

 Financial liabilities at 

amortised cost 

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or liability settled, between knowledgeable willing 
parties in an arm's length transaction. Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the company is a 
going concern without any intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a 
transaction on adverse terms. The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in these financial 
statements approximate their fair values. Fair value is determined on the basis of objective evidence at each reporting 
date.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

40.4
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- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

-Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that 
is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

Capital risk management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a going 
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal 
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may 
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders through repurchase of shares, 
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. Consistent with others in the industry and the requirements of the 
lenders, the Company monitors the capital structure on the basis of gearing ratio. 

This ratio is calculated as debt divided by total capital. Debt is calculated as total borrowings including current and non 
current borrowings, as disclosed in note 7 and 11 respectively. Total capital is calculated as 'equity' shown in the 
statement of financial position plus debt. The gearing ratio as at year ended June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021 are as 
follows:

Compliance with debt covenants

The Company is subject to the compliance of certain financial covenants as per the long term financing agreements 
with financial institutions referred to in note 7 and the Company is in compliance with the requirements throughout the 
reporting period.

40.5

40.6

2022 2021

(Rupees in thousand)

Debt         325,069      1,107,648 

Total equity      2,358,975      2,063,129 

Total capital      2,684,043      3,170,777 

Gearing ratio Percentage 12.1% 34.9%

41. Number of Employees

Total number of employees as at year end (including contractual) 113                101

Average number of employees during the year (including contractual) 106
               

101
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Provident Fund

The investments by the provident fund in collective investment schemes, listed equity and debt securities have been 
made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the conditions specified 
thereunder.

Impact of COVID-19 (Corona virus)

The pandemic of COVID-19 that has rapidly spread all across the world has not only endangered human lives but has 
also adversely impacted the global economy. On March 23, 2020, the Government of the Punjab announced a 
temporary lock down as a measure to reduce the spread of the COVID–19. The Company's operations were not 
affected as it fell under the exemption provided by the Government of Punjab to providers of essential services. After 
implementing all the necessary Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) to ensure safety of employees, the Company 
continued to carry out its operations and has taken all necessary steps to ensure smooth and adequate continuation of 
its business. Due to this, management has assessed the accounting implications of these developments on these 
financial statements, however, according to management's assessment, there is no significant accounting impact of 
the effects of COVID-19 on these financial statements. 

Subsequent events

The Board of Directors of the Company have proposed a final cash dividend of Rs 2 per share (2021: Re. 1 per share) 
for the year ended June 30, 2022 at their meeting held on September 07, 2022 for approval of members at the Annual 
General Meeting to be held on October 20, 2022. These financial statements do not include the effect of these 
appropriations which will be accounted for in the period in which they are approved.

Date of authorization for issue

These financial statements were authorised for issue on September 07, 2022 by the Board of Directors of the 
Company.

Corresponding figures

Corresponding figures have been re-arranged and reclassified, wherever necessary, for the purposes of comparison 
and better presentation as per reporting framework. However, no significant re-arrangements have been made.

42.

43.

44.

45.

46
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
As on June 30, 2022

     ------Shareholdings------
2.2 No. of Shareholders From To Total Shares Held

316 1 100 10,464
528 101 500 223,531

1,948 501 1,000 1,279,169
1,532 1,001 5,000 3,798,033

427 5,001 10,000 3,232,215
179 10,001 15,000 2,228,047
94 15,001 20,000 1,704,300
74 20,001 25,000 1,712,700
47 25,001 30,000 1,347,917
19 30,001 35,000 634,160
21 35,001 40,000 800,260
9 40,001 45,000 383,140

18 45,001 50,000 884,720
8 50,001 55,000 426,720

10 55,001 60,000 588,600
7 60,001 65,000 443,740
5 65,001 70,000 332,667
6 70,001 75,000 445,500
8 75,001 80,000 627,500
3 80,001 85,000 249,000
2 85,001 90,000 176,900
3 90,001 95,000 274,800
8 95,001 100,000 796,630
1 105,001 110,000 109,189
1 110,001 115,000 113,520
7 115,001 120,000 823,800
2 120,001 125,000 244,800
2 125,001 130,000 253,100
2 140,001 145,000 288,000
3 145,001 150,000 444,000
1 150,001 155,000 154,500
3 155,001 160,000 472,520
3 160,001 165,000 487,703
2 170,001 175,000 348,000
3 190,001 195,000 578,000
1 195,001 200,000 200,000
1 235,001 240,000 239,500
1 240,001 245,000 243,000
1 245,001 250,000 250,000
1 250,001 255,000 255,000
1 265,001 270,000 270,000
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     ------Shareholdings------
2.2 No. of Shareholders From To Total Shares Held

3 285,001 290,000 867,500
1 315,001 320,000 318,000
1 320,001 325,000 323,060
2 345,001 350,000 700,000
1 350,001 355,000 351,500
2 375,001 380,000 757,080
1 390,001 395,000 391,000
1 440,001 445,000 444,300
1 460,001 465,000 461,000
1 510,001 515,000 515,000
1 530,001 535,000 535,000
1 535,001 540,000 538,000
1 555,001 560,000 556,500
1 595,001 600,000 600,000
1 670,001 675,000 674,500
1 695,001 700,000 700,000
1 1,305,001 1,310,000 1,310,000
1 1,385,001 1,390,000 1,387,000
1 3,520,001 3,525,000 3,521,500
1 4,580,001 4,585,000 4,583,100
1 8,630,001 8,635,000 8,630,168
1 10,500,001 10,505,000 10,051,697
1 51,725,001 51,730,000 51,728,750
1 56,710,001 56,715,000 56,711,084

5,336 175,031,084
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Categories of Shareholding required under Code of 
Corporate Governance (CCG)
As on June 30, 2022

2.3 Categories of Shareholders Shares Held Percentage

2.3.1  Directors, Chief Executive Officer, 4,060 0.0023%
         and their spouse and minor children

2.3.2  Associated Companies, 127,121,699 72.6281%
         undertakings and related
         parties. (Parent Company)

2.3.3  NIT and ICP 0 0.0000%

2.3.4  Banks Development
         Financial Institutions, Non 485,000 0.2617%
         Banking Financial Institutions.

2.3.5  Insurance Companies 563,160 0.3217%

2.3.6  Modarabas and Mutual 1,73,,940 0.9912%
         Funds

2.3.7  Shareholders holding 10% 117,070,002 66.8853%
         or more

2.3.8  General Public
a. Local 38,137,773 21.7891%
b. Foreign 4,641 0.0027%

2.3.9 Others (to be specified)
1- Pension Funds 1,339,580 0.7652%
2- Joint Stock Companies 4,506,836 2.5749%
3- Foreign Companies 0 0.0000%
4- Others 1.160.395 0.6630%
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Categories of Shareholding required under Code of 
Corporate Governance (CCG)

Sr. No. Name
No. of Shares 

Held
Percentage

Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties (Name Wise Detail):

1 DESCON CORPORATION (PVT.) LIMITED (CDC) 10,051,697 5.7428
2 DEL CHEMICALS (PRIVATE) LIMITED (CDC) 60,358,918 34.4847
3 DESCON ENGINEERING LIMITED (CDC) 56,711,084 32.4006

Mutual Funds (Name Wise Detail)
1 CDC - TRUSTEE ABL STOCK FUND (CDC) 7,540

               
0.0043

2 CDC - TRUSTEE LAKSON EQUITY FUND (CDC) 1,310,000

        
0.7484

3 CDC - TRUSTEE LAKSON ISLAMIC TACTICAL FUND (CDC) 86,900

             

0.0496
4 CDC - TRUSTEE LAKSON TACTICAL FUND (CDC) 146,500

           

0.0837
5 CDC - TREUSTEE NBP ISLAMIC ACTIVE ALLOCATION EQUITY FUND (CDC) 143,000

           

0.0817
6 CDC - TREUSTEE NBP ISLAMIC STOCK FUND (CDC) 14,500

             

0.0083

Directors and their Spouse and Minor Children (Name Wise Detail):  
1 MR. TAIMUR DAWOOD (CDC) 580 0.0003
2 MR. FAISAL DAWOOD (CDC) 580 0.0003
3 MR. FAROOQ NAZIR (CDC) 580 0.0003
4 MRS. MEHREEN DAWOOD (CDC) 580 0.0003
5 MR. ASIF QADIR 580 0.0003
6 MR. ALI ASRAR HOSSAIN AGA 580 0.0003
7 MR. HAROON WAHEED 580 0.0003

Executives: -

                   

-

                   
Public Sector Companies & Corporations: -

                   

-

                   
Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non Banking Finance 2,387,240

        

1.3639
Companies, Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds:

Shareholders holding five percent or more voting intrest in the listed company (Name Wise Detail)

1 DEL CHEMICALS (PRIVATE) LIMITED (CDC) 60,358,918 34.4847
2 DESCON ENGINEERING LIMITED 56,711,084 32.4006
3 DESCON CORPORATION (PVT.) LIMITED (CDC) 10,051,697 5.7428
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the 18th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of Descon Oxychem Limited (the 'Company') will be held 
on Thursday, October 20, 2022 at 10:00 a.m. at the registered office of the Company at Descon Headquarters 18-Km Ferozepur 
Road, Lahore to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business: 

   1) To confirm minutes of the last Annual General Meeting of the Company held on October 25, 2021.

   2) To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 30th June 
2022 together with the reports of Directors' and Auditors' thereon.

   3) To appoint the External Auditors of the Company for the ensuing year and fix their remuneration. (The present auditors 
M/s. A.F. Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants, have retired and being eligible have offered themselves for re-
appointment).

   4) To approve, as recommended by the Board of Directors, the payment of Final Cash Dividend @ 20.00% (i.e. PKR 2.00 
per ordinary share) for the year ended June 30, 2022.

   5) To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

By order of the Board

Lahore      Abdul Sohail
September 28, 2022 Company Secretary
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NOTES:

1. The Share Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from 13-10-2022 to 20-10-2022 (both days inclusive). Transfers 
received at the Corplink (Pvt.) Limited, 1-K, Commercial Model Town Lahore the close of business on 12 Oct, 2022 will be 
treated in time for the purpose of above entitlement of final cash dividend.

2. In compliance with the section 223(6) of Companies Act 2017, the Company has electronically transmitted the Annual 
Accounts 2022 through email to shareholders whose e-mail addresses are available with the Company's Share Registrar, M/s 
Corplink (Pvt) Limited. Shareholders who have not received the email for any reason should download the Annual Accounts 
2022 from the official website of the Company i.e. www.desconoxychem.com (the “Company's Website”). However, the 
Company would also provide hard copies of the Annual Accounts to the Shareholders on their demand at their registered 
address, free of cost within one week of such request. Further, the shareholders who have not yet provided their email address 
are advised to submit their valid email address through a duly signed letter to the Company's Share Registrar Corplink (Pvt.) 
Limited, at Wings Arcade, 1-K, Commercial Model Town Lahore. 

3.Members are requested to attend the AGM in person along with their Computerized National Identity Card (“CNIC”) or appoint 
some other member as proxy and send their proxy forms, duly witnessed, so as to reach the registered office of the Company 
not later than 48 hours before the time of holding the said meeting. A member cannot appoint more than one proxy. Proxy form is 
attached at the end of the Annual Report and is also available on the Company's Website.

4. In case of a corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution / power of attorney along with proxy form shall be shared with 
the Registered Office of the Company at least 48 hours before the AGM.

5. Any Beneficial Owner of CDC, entitled to attend and vote at this meeting, must bring his/her original CNIC or passport, 
Account and participant's I.D. card numbers to prove his/her identity, and in case of proxy it must enclose an attested copy of his 
/ her CNIC or passport. Representatives of corporate members should bring the usual documents required for such purpose.

6. Due to ongoing circumstances caused by COVID-19 pandemic, Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan has 
instructed listed companies to make arrangement for video link facility in case a member wishes to attend the Meeting online. 
Accordingly, the members of our Company may attend the Meeting virtually. To attend the Meeting virtually, a Member is 
required to send an email to shareholders@descon.com with email address, name, folio number, CNIC number and number of 
shares held in his/her name with subject “Registration for 18th AGM of Descon Oxychem Limited”. A video link to join the 
Meeting will be shared with Members whose emails, containing all the required particulars, are received not later than 48 (forty-
eight) hours before the time of the Meeting. Members attending the Meeting in person will be required to comply with SoPs and 
protocols/guidelines for their own safety and safety of others.

7. In accordance with the provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, it is mandatory for a listed Company to pay 
cash dividend to its shareholders only through electronic mode directly into bank account designated by the entitled 
shareholders. In order to receive dividends directly into their bank account, shareholders are requested to fill in Electronic Credit 
Mandate Form available on the Company's Website duly sign and send it along with a copy of CNIC to the Shares Registrar of the 
Company, Corplink (Pvt.) Limited, Wings Arcade, 1-K, Commercial, Model Town, Lahore in case of physical shares. In case 
shares are held in CDC then Electronic Credit Mandate Form must be submitted directly to shareholder's Broker/Participant/CDC 
Account Services.

8. The Government of Pakistan has made certain amendments in the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 whereby different rates are 
prescribed for deduction of withholding tax on the amount of dividend paid by the companies. These rates are as follows: 

i. For filers of income tax returns 15% 
ii. For non-filers of income tax returns 30%
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9. To enable the Company to make tax deduction on the amount of cash dividend @15% instead of 30% from all the 
shareholders whose names are not entered into the Active Tax-payers List (ATL) provided on the website of FBR, despite the fact 
that they are filers, are advised to make sure that their names are entered into ATL before the date of payment of the cash 
dividend, otherwise tax on their cash dividend will be deducted @30% instead of 15%.

10. In the case of shares registered in the name of two or more shareholders, each joint-holder is to be treated individually as 
either a filer or non-filer and tax will be deducted by the Company on the basis of shareholding of each joint-holder as may be 
notified to the Company in writing. If the share is not ascertainable then each account holder will be assumed to hold equal 
proportion of shares and the deduction will be made accordingly. Therefore, in order to avoid deduction of tax at a higher rate, the 
joint account holders are requested to provide the below details of their shareholding to the Share Registrar of the Company 
latest by the AGM date:

11. The corporate shareholders having CDC accounts are required to have their National Tax Number (NTN) updated with their 
respective participants, whereas corporate physical shareholders should send a copy of their NTN certificate to the Company or 
the Shares Registrar. The shareholders while sending NTN or NTN certificates, as the case may be, must quote company name 
and their respective folio numbers.

12. A valid tax exemption certificate is necessary for exemption from the deduction of withholding tax under Section 150 of the 
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Members who qualify under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and wish to seek an exemption must 
provide a copy of their valid tax exemption certificate to the Shares Registrar prior to the date of book closure otherwise tax will 
be deducted according to applicable law.

13. As per the provision of section 244 of the Act, any shares issued, or dividend declared by the Company which have remained 
unclaimed / unpaid for a period of three years form the date on which it was due and payable are required to be deposited with 
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan for the credit of Federal Government after issuance of notices to the 
shareholders to file their claim. The details of the shares issued and dividend declared by the Company which have remained 
due for more then three years was sent to shareholders.

14. Members having physical shares are requested to immediately notify the change in their addresses, if any to the Company's 
Share Registrar, whereas CDC account holders are requested to contact their CDC Participant / CDC Account Services.

15. Shareholders are requested to immediately notify change in address, if any, to the Company's Share Registrar, M/s. Corplink 
(Private) Limited, Wings Arcade, 1-K, Commercial, Model Town, Lahore and also furnish attested photocopy of their CNIC as 
per Listing Regulations, if not provided earlier.

Folio / CDC 
Account 
No.

 

Name of 
shareholder

 
CNIC

 
Shareholding

 
Total Shares

 

Principal/Joint 
Shareholders
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IMPORTANT
This form of proxy, in order to be effective, must be deposited 
duly completed, at the Company's registered office at Descon 
Headquarters, 18-KM, Ferozepur Road, Lahore not less than 48 hours 
before the time of holding the meeting. A Proxy must be member of the 
Company. Signature should agree with the specimen register with the 
Company. Please quote registered Folio / CDC Account numbers

I/We

of 

being a member of Descon Oxychem Limited entitled to vote and holder of

ordinary shares, hereby appoint Mr./Mrs./Mst.

of

Who is also a member of the Company, as my/our proxy in my / our absence to attend and vote for me 
/ us on my / our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at Descon Headquarters,18-km, 
Ferozepur Road, Lahore on Thursday, October 20, 2022 at 10:00 am and at any Adjournment thereof.

As witness my / Our hand this                                                                        day of                            2022.

Signed by the said in the presence of

(Member’s Signature)

Place

Date
(Witness’s Signature)

Affix 
Revenue Stamp which

must be cancelled
either by signature
over it or by some

other means

Form of Proxy
Descon Oxchem Limited
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Descon Headquarters, 18 km Ferozepur Road,
Lahore - 54760, Pakistan
T: +92 42 3 7971822-24
F: +92 42 3 7971834
W: www.desconoxychem.com
E: dol@descon.com
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